








 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  4A 
 
 
TITLE:   
Presentations acknowledging the service and contributions of outgoing Councilmember Kay 
McAnally. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  4B 
 
 
TITLE:   
Presentations acknowledging the service and contributions of outgoing Councilmember Willie 
DeLaRosa. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  4C 
 
 
TITLE:   
Presentations acknowledging the service and contributions of outgoing Mayor Ken Kesselus 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  4D 
 
 
TITLE:   
Presentation by the 9th Grade Students from the Colorado River Collegiate Academy regarding 
the need for a Youth Advisory Council. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Mrs. Megan Brandon, a 9th Grade Social Studies Research Methods Teacher at Colorado River 
Collegiate Academy, has four (4) classes working with a program called Generation Citizens. St. 
Edwards and University of Texas college students serve as democracy coaches.  Generation 
Citizens is an action-civics curriculum where students select a community issue, research it, and 
come up with a potential solution.  These students are some of the first in the state and central 
U.S. to take part in this program.  To date, this program has only been available in Boston, New 
York, San Francisco, and Connecticut. 
 
Mrs. Brandon’s third period class has identified few opportunities for youth activities and 
leadership in Bastrop.  Their identified solution is a Youth Advisory Council, which they would like 
to present to Council for consideration. 
 
City Manager Humble and staff have met with Mrs. Brandon’s students to understand their 
concerns.  Staff is prepared to work with these students to establish a Youth Advisory Council 
and help them achieve their goal, should Council chose to support their request.   
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 4E 
 
TITLE: 
Presentation of Proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, recognizing May 
19, 2017 as “Put on Purple Day” in recognition of Lupus awareness for the City of Bastrop.  
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
An estimated 1.5 million Americans suffer from Lupus, the chronic inflammatory, autoimmune 
disease, that can affect various parts of the body, especially the skin, joints, blood and kidneys.  
Lupus can be difficult to diagnose because its symptoms are similar to those of many other 
illnesses, and major gaps exist in understanding the causes and consequences. 
 



 

 

roclamation 

 

WHEREAS, an estimated 1.5 million Americans suffer from Lupus, the chronic 
inflammatory, autoimmune disease that can affect various parts of the body, especially 
the skin, joints, blood and kidneys; and 

WHEREAS, Lupus can be difficult to diagnose because its symptoms are similar to those 
of many other illnesses, and major gaps exist in understanding the causes and 
consequences; and 

WHEREAS, the Lupus Foundation of America, Lone Star Chapter, is part of a national 
force devoted to solving the cruel mystery of lupus while providing caring support to those 
who suffer from its brutal impact; and 

WHEREAS, the Chapter rallied the City of Bastrop community to wear the color purple 
and to further unify the support for those living with the disease; and 

WHEREAS, awareness is vital in raising funds for research for those affected by lupus; 
and it is our responsibility as a community to advocate on their behalf and to further 
encourage educational programs so everyone affected by lupus can have an improved 
quality of life; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ken Kesselus, Mayor of the City of Bastrop, Texas, do hereby 
proclaim May 19, 2017 as: 

                   PUT ON PURPLE DAY 

Throughout the City of Bastrop and urge all citizens to support the cause of raising 
awareness of lupus, so that we can have a world with NO lupus. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Bastrop 
to be affixed this 9th day of May 2017. 

 
 ______________________________ 

        Kenneth W. Kesselus, Mayor 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:    May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 4F 
 
TITLE: 
Presentation of Proclamation for declaring May 21 – 27, 2017 as National Public Works Week in 
Bastrop, TX. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Trey Job, Director of Public Works 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
National Public Works week is a time to celebrate the Public Works Professionals that work hard 
behind the scenes every day to make the quality of life for their residents the best it can be, the 
hard-working men and women are integral to the health, safety, and well-being of our citizens. 
The Public Works Department includes divisions such as: Parks, Streets, Drainage, Building 
maintenance, Water, and Waste water treatment, collection and distribution.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Proclamation declaring May 21-27, 2017 National Public Works Week in Bastrop, Texas. 



 

 

roclamation 

 
 

 

WHEREAS, Public Works infrastructure, facilities, and services provided in our 
communities are an integral part of our citizens’ health, safety, and well-being; and, 
 
WHEREAS, such facilities and services could not be provided without the 
dedicated efforts of public works professionals, engineers, managers, and 
employees at all levels of government and the private sector, who are responsible 
for the planning, building, operation, and maintenance of transportation, water 
supply, water treatment, solid waste systems, public buildings, and other structures 
and facilities essential to serve our citizens; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders, and children in 
our country to understand and appreciate public works programs in their 
communities; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their 
planning, design, and construction, are dependent upon the efforts and skill of 
public works officials; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the year 2017 marks the 57th annual National Public Works Week 
sponsored by the American Public Works Association; now, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor Kenneth Kesselus, Mayor of the City of Bastrop, do 
hereby proclaim the week of May 21-27, 2017 as: 
 

National Public Works Week in the City of Bastrop, TX 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Official 
Seal of the City of Bastrop, Texas to be affixed this 9th day of May, 2017. 
 

 
     __________________________________ 
         Kenneth W. Kesselus, Mayor 
      



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 4G 
 
TITLE: 
Presentation of Proclamation declaring May 14- 20, 2017 as National Police Week for the City 
of Bastrop.  
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Steve Adcock, Public Safety Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
In 1962 President Kennedy proclaimed May 15th as National Peace Officers Memorial Day.  
Established by a joint resolution of Congress in 1962, National Police Week pays special 
recognition to those law enforcement officers whom have lost their lives in the line of duty for the 
safety and protection of others. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Proclamation for National Police Week 



 

 

roclamation 

 
 

WHEREAS, citizens of Bastrop gather to recognize and honor our law enforcement officers 
for their faithful service and sacrifice while protecting our community and safeguarding our 
democracy; and   
 

WHEREAS, there are more than 900,000 sworn law enforcement officers serving in 
communities across the United States, including the dedicated members of the Bastrop Police 
Department; and  
 

WHEREAS, nearly 60,000 assaults against law enforcement officers are reported each year, 
resulting in approximately 16,000 injuries; and  
 

WHEREAS, since the first recorded death in 1791, more than 20,000 law enforcement officers 
in the United States have made the ultimate sacrifice and been killed in the line of duty, 
including one member of the Bastrop Police Department; and   
 

WHEREAS, the names of these dedicated public servants are engraved on the walls of the 
National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial in Washington, D.C.; and 
 

WHEREAS, 38 fallen heroes have been added to the National Law Enforcement Officers 
Memorial this spring, 1 of which was killed in the State of Texas, and including 144 officers 
killed in the line of duty in 2016; and 
 

WHEREAS, the service and sacrifice of all officers killed in the line of duty will be honored 
during the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund’s 29th Annual Candlelight Vigil, 
on the evening of May 15, 2017; and  
 

WHEREAS, May 15 is designated as Peace Officers Memorial Day, in honor of all fallen 
officers and their families and U.S. flags should be flown at half-staff; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that I, Mayor Ken Kesselus, do hereby proclaim 
May 14th, 2017 through May 20st, 2017, as: 
 

POLICE WEEK IN BASTROP, TEXAS 
 

and publicly salute the service of law enforcement officers in our community and in 
communities across the nation. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Official Seal of the 
City of Bastrop, TX to be affixed this 9th day of May 2017. 
 

______________________________ 
  Ken Kesselus, Mayor 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:    May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 4H 
 
TITLE: 
Presentation of Video Response by City Manager Lynda Humble & City Attorney David Bragg 
providing additional information on the recent lawsuit settlements. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
David Bragg, City Attorney 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  4I 
 
TITLE:   
Councilmembers’ Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  4J 
 
 
TITLE:   
Mayor’s Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  4K 
 
 
TITLE:   
City Manager’s Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 5A 
 
TITLE:  
Presentation from Organizations applying for FY2017 Tier III Hotel Occupancy Tax Funding. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The organizations applying for FY2017 Tier III Hotel Occupancy Tax Funding are: 

• Bastrop Chamber of Commerce 
• Bastrop Homecoming, Inc. 
• Bastrop Juneteenth 
• Bastrop Opera House 
• Lost Pines Art League 
• Neighbors Kitchen and Yard 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The City of Bastrop Hotel Motel Tax Use Policy states: 

• Section V., C. “Application Process”, “The applicant will be requested to present the 
funding request to the City Council.” and  

• Section V., F. “Evaluation of Applications”, (2) “If the application is found to be complete, 
the request will be brought forward to the City Council for consideration.  The 
organization will be requested to be present during Council consideration to provide 
more information and/or clarification.” 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Applications 





































































































 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 6A 
 
TITLE: 
Presentation from the Bastrop Main Street Program: Downtown, TX, Preservation Month & 
Imagine the Possibilities Tour 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Sarah O’Brien, Main Street Program Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Just in time for preservation month, the City of Bastrop Main Street Program will host an “Imagine 
the Possibilities Tour” in downtown to correspond with the recent, statewide launch of 
DowntownTX.org by the Texas Historical Commission—a software application designed to 
revolutionize how downtown programs connect potential investors to development opportunities 
in Texas’ historic downtowns.  Bastrop’s event is one of a series of similar tours being held across 
the state during the month of May. 
 
The tour will showcase available downtown properties as a way to engage potential investors, 
entrepreneurs, developers, residents and anyone else who has imagined themselves running a 
business, owning a building, or living downtown. Properties featured on the Downtown, TX site 
will be open and accessible to the public and tour attendees can obtain additional information on 
downtown development and business resources at a central gathering point. 
 
The first of its kind, DowntownTX.org is an online building inventory for Texas downtowns 
featuring historic property listings. The concept originated in 2015 by the Town Square Initiative, 
an affiliate of the Texas Main Street Program, which focuses on the challenge of vacant and 
underutilized historic properties. The website officially launched on May 1st  by the Texas Historical 
Commission as part of Preservation Month with about 30 cities online.  
 
Main Street Director Sarah O’Brien will give a brief presentation on the database. 
 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  7 
 
 
TITLE:   
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
At this time, three (3) minute comments will be taken from the audience on any topic.  To address 
the Council, please submit a fully completed request card to the City Secretary prior to the 
beginning of the Citizens’ Comment portion of the Council meeting.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, if a citizen discusses any item not on the agenda, City Council cannot discuss 
issues raised or make any decision at this time.  Instead, City Council is limited to making a 
statement of specific factual information or a recitation of existing policy in response to the inquiry.   
Issues may be referred to City Staff for research and possible future action. 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  8A 
 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve minutes from the April 25, 2017 Regular Council meeting. 
 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
N/A 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Section 551.021 of the Government Code provides as follows: 

(a)  A governmental body shall prepare and keep minutes or make a tape recording of 
each open meeting of the body. 

(b)  The minutes must: 
 1.  State the subject of each deliberation; and 
 2.  Indicate the vote, order, decision, or other action taken. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve minutes from the April 25, 2017 Regular Council meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• April 25, 2017 DRAFT Regular Council Meeting Minutes 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  APRIL 25, 2017 

M I N U T E S  O F  R E G U L A R  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  
B A S T R O P  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  

APRIL 25, 2017 
 

The Bastrop City Council met in a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, April 25, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. at the 
Bastrop City Hall Council Chambers, located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.  Members 
present were Mayor Kesselus, Mayor Pro Tem DeLaRosa and Council Members Peterson, Jones 
and McAnally.  Officers present were City Manager Lynda Humble, City Secretary Ann Franklin, 
and City Attorney David Bragg.   
 
CALL TO ORDER  
At 6:30 p.m. Mayor Kesselus called the meeting to order with a quorum being present. Council 
Member Schiff was absent.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Glen Johnson led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
INVOCATION   
Reverend Bernie Jackson gave the Invocation.  
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
4A.  Proclamation recognizing “Air Quality Awareness Week.” 
 
4B.  Proclamation recognizing “Motorcycle Safety and Awareness Month.” 
 
4C Proclamation recognizing “National Firefighter Day” and declaring May 4, 2017 as 

Firefighter Appreciation Day for the City of Bastrop. 
  
4D Councilmembers’ Report 
 Council Member Jones –  

• Would like to see some type of golf activity at the State Park. 
• Excited about the work that is taking place on the north part of town. 

4E Mayor’s Report 
• Encouraged everyone to get involved in the process and to get out and vote. 

4F City Manager’s Report 
• Farm to Table event was a success and it is one of the things that makes this 

community unique.  The event served as a fundraiser for Main Street. 
• Farm Street Opry is held on the first Thursday of each month at the Convention 

Center. 
• May 5th – Cinco De Mayo Pub Crawl 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The City Council met at 6:50 p.m. in a closed/executive session pursuant to the Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551, et seq, to discuss the following: 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  APRIL 25, 2017 

10A. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 
of the Texas Government Code to discuss and deliberate litigation matters with the 
City Attorney regarding City of Bastrop vs. Vandiver and Hoover claims. 

 
10B. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 

of the Texas Government Code to discuss and deliberate litigation matters with the 
City Attorney regarding the appeal of property owners involved in water permit 
litigation (known as McCall Ranch) and the status of the XS Ranch Development. 

  
The Bastrop City Council reconvened at 7:43 p.m. into open (public) session. 
 
TAKE ANY NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE ACTION ON MATTERS POSTED FOR 
CONSIDERATION IN CLOSED/EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 
10A. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 

of the Texas Government Code to discuss and deliberate litigation matters with the 
City Attorney regarding City of Bastrop vs. Vandiver and Hoover claims. 
A motion was made by Council Member Peterson to approve the following motion, 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem DeLaRosa, motion was approved on a 4-0 vote.  
Council Member Schiff was absent.  The motion was to approve the settlement 
agreement between the City of Bastrop and Scotty and Rhonda Vandiver in the 
amount of $150,000, to pay over three payments of $50,000 each when certain 
requirements are met as outlined in the agreement, dismiss all City lawsuits 
regarding 909 and 911 Farm Street, and authorize the Mayor to execute the 
agreement. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Peterson to approve the following motion. 
Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem DeLaRosa, motion was approved on a 4-0 vote.  
Council Member Schiff was absent.  The motion was to approve the settlement 
agreement between the City of Bastrop and Judy and Tommy Hoover in the amount 
of $32,272.26 to settle all potential claims with respect to the permits and other 
services and processes for the property and utility services at 1305 and 1610 Wilson 
Street and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement. 

 
10B. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 

of the Texas Government Code to discuss and deliberate litigation matters with the 
City Attorney regarding the appeal of property owners involved in water permit 
litigation (known as McCall Ranch). 
A motion was made by Council Member Peterson to authorize the Mayor to sign a 
memorandum settlement between the City of Bastrop and the McCall Ranch group. 
Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem DeLaRosa, motion was approved on a 4-0 vote.  
Council Member Schiff was absent. 

 
Addition by City Manager for public disclosure relative to funds being expended: 
The only monetary impact of this agreement is raising the mitigation fund 
associated with the City’s water permit from $100,000 to $250,000 to ensure that 
should any damage occur to twelve identified property owners as a result of the 
permit, there is appropriate mitigation funds available.  If there is no damage to the 
wells that can be documented and proved within a 10 year period, the mitigation 
money is then returned to the City. 

  



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  APRIL 25, 2017 

 
4F City Manager’s Report Continued 

• May 5th – First Friday Art Walk 

WORK SESSION/BRIEFINGS 
 
5A. Discuss and receive consensus on an amendment to the Financial Management 

Policy requiring a reserve balance for the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund. 
 Presentation was given by City Manager Lynda Humble. 
 

A resolution will be brought back on May 9, 2017 for action. 
 
5B. Discuss and receive feedback regarding changes to Article 4.03, “Taxicabs and 

Touring Vehicles.” 
 Staff was directed to bring back proposed language to Council. 
 
5C. Discuss and receive feedback regarding a protocol for Consent Agenda items. 
 In the future prior to the reading of the “Consent Agenda,” the Mayor will ask the 

audience if there is anyone present who would like to pull an item from the “Consent 
Agenda”. 

 
STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS 
 
6A.  Receive presentation on the unaudited monthly financial report for the period ending 

March 31, 2017. 
 Report was given by the Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 
 
6B. Receive presentation on the Quarterly Investment Report for period ending March 31, 

2017. 
 Report was given by the Chief Financial Officer, Tracy Waldron. 
 
6C. Receive monthly report from Bastrop Economic Development Corporation. 

Report was given by the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation Executive 
Director Shawn Kirkpatrick. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
  

Walker Haynes – Via video,  promoted the First Thursday Film Festival in Bastrop.   
 
 David Perkins – Promoted the First Thursday Film Festival in Bastrop.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem DeLaRosa to approve items 8A, 8B, 8C, 8D, 8E, 8F 
and 8J listed on the Consent Agenda after being read into the record by City Secretary Ann 
Franklin.  Seconded by Council Member Peterson, motion was approved on a 4-0 vote.  
Council Member Schiff was absent. 
 
8A. Consider action to approve minutes from the March 28, 2017 and April 11, 2017 

regular Council meetings. 
 
8B. Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 2017-11 by the City of 

Bastrop, Texas, ("City") responding to the application of Centerpoint Energy 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  APRIL 25, 2017 

Resources Corp., South Texas Division, to increase rates under the Gas Reliability 
Infrastructure Program; suspending the effective date of this rate application for forty-
five days; authorizing the City to continue to participate in a coalition of cities known 
as the "Alliance of Centerpoint Municipalities;" determining that the meeting at which 
the ordinance was adopted complied with the Texas Open Meetings Act; making such 
other findings and provisions related to the subject; and providing for an effective date. 

 
8C. Consider action to approve Resolution R-2017-18 by the City Council of the City of 

Bastrop, Texas authorizing the City Manager and consultants to proceed with the 
establishment of a nonprofit corporation to facilitate the City’s destination and 
marketing functions; preparing any required documents and agreements necessary to 
effectuate the corporation’s organization; and those matters necessary or incidental in 
connection therewith. 

 
8D. Consider action to approve the Budget Planning Calendar for the Fiscal Year 2017-

2018. 
 
8E. Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2017-12 of the City 

Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, continuing the curfew, for minors, as established 
in Ordinance 2008-26, and providing an effective date. 

 
8F. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-15 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas, requesting the members of the 85th Legislative Session of the State 
of Texas to support legislation that provides a fair and equitable distribution of the 
sporting goods sales tax revenue for local and state parks. 

 
8H. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-20 authorizing reimbursement of 

legal fees to Council Member Gary Schiff incurred in his defense against Ethics 
Complaint No. 2016-2; providing a precedence for future reimbursements of legal fees 
related to Ethics Complaints of Council Members or Staff where there are no 
violation(s) found; and repealing Resolution R-2017-13. 

 This item was withdrawn. 
 
8I. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-19 authorizing reimbursement of 

legal fees to Council Member Deborah Jones incurred in her defense against Ethics 
Complaint No. 2016-3; providing a precedence for future reimbursements of legal fees 
related to Ethics Complaints of Council Members or Staff where there are no 
violation(s) found; and repealing Resolution R-2017-14. 

 This item was withdrawn. 
 
8J. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-20 approving a Public Decorum 

Protocol and providing for an effective date.  
 

DISCUSSION ITEM 
 

8G. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-17 of the City Council of the City 
of Bastrop, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to execute an application for 
$5,800,000 to the Texas Water Development Board for low interest funding available 
through the State Water Implementation Fund for Texas. 

 Presentation was made by Public Works, Parks and Utilities Director Trey Job. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  APRIL 25, 2017 

 
 Resolution No. R-2017-17 was approved on the motion made by Council Member 

Jones, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem DeLaRosa on a 4-0 vote.  Council Member 
Schiff was absent. 
 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION  
 
9A. Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance 

2017-13 of the City of Bastrop, Texas updating and amending Bastrop Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 10, Article 10.02, entitled “Impact Fees”, updating the land use 
assumptions, capital improvement plan and amending impact fees for water and 
wastewater utilities, and providing for an effective date; and move to include on the 
May 9, 2017 agenda for a second reading. 

 Presentation was made by Nelisa Heddin, NH Consulting, LLC. 
 
 The public hearing was closed. 
 

Ordinance No. 2017-13 was approved on a motion by Mayor Pro Tem DeLaRosa, 
seconded by Council Member Peterson on a 4-0 vote.  Council Member Schiff was 
absent. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION CONTINUED 
 
The City Council met at 9:45 p.m. in a closed/executive session pursuant to the Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551, et seq, to discuss the following: 
 
10B. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.071 

of the Texas Government Code to discuss and deliberate litigation matters with the 
City Attorney regarding the status of the XS Ranch Development. 

 
10C. City Council shall convene into closed executive session pursuant to Section 551.072 

of the Texas Government Code to consider the purchase of five (5) parcels of land 
within the City of Bastrop. 

 
The Bastrop City Council reconvened at 11:20 p.m. into open (public) session. 
 
11. TAKE ANY NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE ACTION ON MATTERS POSTED 

FOR CONSIDERATION IN CLOSED/EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 No Action taken. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Mayor Pro Tem DeLaRosa made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 11:21 p.m., seconded 
by Council Member Peterson.  The motion was approved on a 4-0 vote.  Council Member 
Schiff was absent. 

APPROVED:        ATTEST: 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 

       Mayor Ken Kesselus    City Secretary Ann Franklin 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  APRIL 25, 2017 

 
 
Minutes were approved on (Mon/Date/Year) by Council Member motion, Council 
Member second.  The motion was approved on a   vote. 

 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  8B 
 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 2017-13 of the City of Bastrop, Texas 
updating and amending Bastrop Code of Ordinances, Chapter 10, Article 10.02, entitled “Impact 
Fees”, updating the land use assumptions, Capital Improvement Plan, and amending impact fees 
for water and wastewater utilities, and providing for an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
   
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The City started the study of its Impact Fees in December 2015. This process involved many of 
the City’s staff to collect data on consumption, capital projects and history of revenue and 
expenditures. The last Impact Fee Study was adopted on August 9, 2011.  A Public Hearing and 
first reading was held at the April 25, 2017 meeting. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Texas Local Government Code Chapter 395.052 requires a political subdivision imposing an 
impact fee to update the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan at least every five 
years. The initial five-year period begins on the day the Capital Improvements Plan is adopted. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 2017-13 of the City of Bastrop, Texas 
updating and amending Bastrop Code of Ordinances, Chapter 10, Article 10.02, entitled “Impact 
Fees”, updating the land use assumptions, Capital Improvement Plan, and amending impact fees 
for water and wastewater utilities, and providing for an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Ordinance 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
UPDATING AND AMENDING BASTROP CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE 10.02, ENTITLED 
"IMPACT FEES", UPDATING THE LAND USE 
ASSUMPTIONS, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN, AND 
AMENDING IMPACT FEES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER 
UTILITIES, AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop is responsible for and committed to the 
provision of public facilities and services (including water and wastewater 
service) at levels necessary to cure any existing public service deficiencies in 
already developed areas; and 
 

WHEREAS, such facilities and service levels shall be provided by the 
City of Bastrop utilizing funds allocated in the capital budget and capital 
improvements programming processes and relying upon the  funding sources 
indicated therein; and 
 

WHEREAS,   new     residential      and            nonresidential   development     causes      
and    imposes increased demands upon Bastrop public facilities and services, 
including water and wastewater facilities, that would not otherwise occur; and 
 

WHEREAS, planning projections indicate that such development will 
continue and will place ever-increasing demands on the City to provide 
necessary public facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the development potential and value of properties is 
strongly influenced and encouraged by City policy as expressed in the 
Comprehensive Plan and as implemented via the City zoning ordinance and 
map; and 
 

WHEREAS, to the extent that such new development places demands 
upon the public facility infrastructure, those demands should be satisfied by 
more equitably assigning responsibility for financing the provision of such 
facilities from the public at large to the developments actually creating the 
demands for them; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of the impact fee to be imposed shall be 
determined by the cost of the additional public facilities needed to support such 
development, which public facilities shall be identified in a capital improvements 



 

program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after careful consideration of the matter, 
hereby finds and declares that impact fees imposed upon residential and 
nonresidential development to finance specified major public facilities, the 
demand for which is created by such development, is in the best interests of the 
general welfare of the City and its residents, is equitable, and does not impose 
an unfair burden on such development; 
 

WHEREAS, in 1987 the Texas Legislature adopted Senate Bill 336, now 
Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code, and subsequently amended 
said Chapter from time to time; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that in all things the City has complied 
with said statute in the notice, adoption, promulgation and methodology 
necessary to adopt Impact Fees; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 
 
Part 1: CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE 10.02 - IMPACT FEES, SHALL BE  
AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY 
 
Sec. 10.02.001 - Short Title. 
 
No changes.  
 
Sec. 10.02.002 - Intent. 
 
No changes. 
 
Sec. 10.02.003 - Authority. 
 
No changes. 
 
Sec. 10.02.004 - Definitions. 

No changes. 

 

      



 

 
Sec. 10.02.005 - Applicability. 

No changes. 
 
Sec. 10.02.006 - Impact Fees as Conditions of Development Approval. 
 
No changes.  
 
Sec. 10.02.007 - Establishment of Water and Wastewater Service Areas. 
 
A. The water and wastewater service areas are established as shown on 

the Service Area Map which is Exhibit A to Ordinance 2017-13. 
 
B. No changes.  
 
Sec. 10.02.008 - Land Use Assumptions. 
 
Land use assumptions used in the development of the impact fees are contained 
in Exhibit B to Ordinance 2017-13. These assumptions may be revised by the 
City Council according to the procedure set forth in V.T.C.A. Local Government 
Code, chp. 395 and its successors. 
 
Sec. 10.02.009 - Service Units. 
 
No changes. 
 
 
Sec. 1.02.010 - Impact Fees Per Service Unit. 
 
A. The maximum impact fee per service unit for each service area shall be 

computed by dividing the growth-related capital construction cost of 
service in the service area identified in the capital improvements plan for 
that category  of  capital  improvements, by the total number of projected 
service units anticipated within the service area which are necessitated 
by and attributable to new development, based on the land use 
assumptions for that service area, and adjusted by subtracting credits 
in the form of future rate or tax contributions to water and/or wastewater 
CIP funding and adding any additional amount as may be yielded in the 
inflation-escalator portion of the fee assessment formula set forth in Sec. 
10.02.011. Maximum impact fees per service unit for each service area 
shall be established by category of capital improvements and shall be 



 

set forth in Exhibit C to Ordinance 2017-13. 
 
B. Exhibit C to Ordinance 2017-13 may be amended by the City Council 

according to the procedure set forth in Chapter 395 of the Texas Local 
Government Code and its successors. 
 

C. The effective impact fees per service unit may be amended from time to 
time by the City Council through ordinance amendment to any amount 
less than that set forth in Exhibit C to Ordinance 2017-13. 

 
Sec. 10.02.011 - Assessment. 
 
A. No changes. 

 
B. Assessment of the impact fee for any new development shall be made 

as follows: 
 

1. No changes.  
2. For new development, which has received final plat approval prior 

to the effective date of this article and for which no replatting is 
necessary prior to the issuance of a building permit, assessment 
shall be upon the issuance of a building permit, and shall be the 
value of the effective impact fee per service unit set forth in Exhibit 
C to Ordinance 2017-13. 

3. For new development, which occurs or is proposed to occur without 
platting, assessment shall be upon the issuance of a building permit, 
and shall be the value of the effective impact fee per service unit set 
forth in Exhibit C to Ordinance 2017-13. 

4. No changes.  
5. No changes.  

 
C. No changes. 

 
D. No changes. 
 
 
Sec. 10.02.012 - Calculation of Impact Fees. 
 

No changes 
 

 
Sec. 10.02.013 - Collection of Impact Fees. 

 



 

No changes. 
 

Sec. 10.02.014 - Offsets Against Impact Fees. 
 
No changes.  

 
 
Sec. 10.02.015 - Establishment of Accounts and Records. 
 
No changes. 

 
 
Sec. 10.02.016 - Use of Proceeds of Impact Fee Accounts. 
 
No changes. 

 

Sec. 10.02.017 – Appeals. 

No changes. 
 
 
Sec. 10.02.018 – Refunds. 
 
No changes.  
 
 
Sec. 10.02.019 - Updates to Plan and Revision of Fees. 
 
No changes. 
 
Sec. 10.02.020 - Functions of Advisory Committee. 
 
No Changes. 
 
 
Sec. 10.02.021 - Agreement for Capital Improvements. 
 
No changes. 
 

Sec. 10.02.022 - Use of Other Financing Mechanisms. 
 
No changes.  
 
Sec. 10.02.023 - Impact Fees as Additional and Supplemental Regulation. 
 



 

No changes. 
 

Sec. 10.02.024 - Relief Procedures. 
 
No changes. 
 
Sec. 10.02.025 - Exemptions. 
 
No changes. 
 
Sec. 10.02.026 - Certification of Compliance   Required. 
 

No changes. 
 

Secs. 10.02.027 – 10.02.060 Reserved 
 
DIVISION 2. – WATER FACILITIES 

Sec. 10.02.061 - Service Area. 
 
A. There is hereby established a water service area as depicted on Exhibit 

A to Ordinance 2017-13 and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

B. No changes.  
 
Sec. 10.02.062 - Improvements Plan. 
 
A. The Water Improvements Plan for the City is hereby adopted as Exhibit 

D to Ordinance 2017-13 and incorporated by reference herein. 
 

B. No changes. 
 
 
Sec. 10.02.063 - Impact Fees. 
 
A. The maximum impact fee values per service unit for water facilities are 

hereby adopted and incorporated in Exhibit C to Ordinance 2017-13 
and made a part hereof by reference. 
 

B. No changes.  
 
 
Secs. 10.02.064-10.02.090 – Reserved. 
 



 

DIVISION 3. -  WASTEWATER FACILITIES 
 
Sec. 10.02.091 - Service Area. 
 
A.  There is hereby established a wastewater service area as depicted on 

Exhibit A to Ordinance 2017-13 and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

B.  No changes.  
 
Sec. 10.02.092 - Improvements Plan. 

 
A. The Wastewater Improvements Plan for the City is hereby adopted as 

Exhibit E to Ordinance 2017-13 hereto and incorporated by reference 
herein. 

 
B.  No changes.  
 
Sec. 10.02.093 - Impact Fees. 
 
A. The maximum impact fee values per service unit for wastewater facilities are 
hereby adopted and incorporated in Exhibit C to Ordinance 2017-13 and made a 
part hereof by reference. 
 
B. No changes.  
  
PART 2. This ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all 
other ordinances of the City, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect 
any of such other ordinances except insofar as the provisions thereof might be 
inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance, in which event such 
conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby 
repealed. 
 
PART 3: If any sentence, section, subsection, clause, phrase, part or provision of 
this Ordinance be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the 
same shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole, or any part thereof, 
other than the part declared to be invalid. 
 
PART 4: The provisions of this Ordinance shall be liberally construed to effectively 
carry out its purposes, which are hereby found and declared to be in furtherance 



 

of the public health, safety, and welfare. Any member of the Council or any City 
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the 
City in the discharge of his or her duties, shall not thereby render himself or herself 
personally liable; and is hereby relieved from all personal liability for any damage 
that might accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted 
in the discharge of said duties. 
 
PART 5: Any violation of this ordinance can be enjoined by a suit filed in the name 
of the City in court of competent jurisdiction, and this remedy shall be in addition 
to any penal provision in this ordinance or in the Code of the City. 
 
PART 6: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage of the second 
reading. 
 
READ and APPROVED on First Reading on the 25th day of April, 2017. 
 
READ and ADOPTED on Second Reading on the 9th day of May, 2017. 
 
 
APPROVED:              ATTEST: 
                                                
 
___________________________                 ____ _______    
Ken Kesselus, Mayor                                    Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
         
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
David Bragg, City Attorney 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 



EXHIBIT B 



EXHIBIT C

 MAXIMUM  AND EFFECTIVE IMPACT FEES 

METER METER

TYPE SIZE MULTIPLIER WATER SEWER BOTH WATER SEWER BOTH

SIMPLE

5/8" x 

3/4" 1.0 1,353.00$        3,554.00$                4,907.00$            1,353.00$        3,554.00$            4,907.00$           

SIMPLE 3/4" 1.0 1,353.00$        3,554.00$                4,907.00$            1,353.00$        3,554.00$            4,907.00$           

SIMPLE 1" 2.5 3,382.50$        8,885.00$                12,267.50$         3,382.50$        8,885.00$            12,267.50$        

SIMPLE 1 1/2" 5.0 6,765.00$        17,770.00$              24,535.00$         6,765.00$        17,770.00$         24,535.00$        

SIMPLE 2" 8.0 10,824.00$      28,432.00$              39,256.00$         10,824.00$      28,432.00$         39,256.00$        

COMPOUND 2" 8.0 10,824.00$      28,432.00$              39,256.00$         10,824.00$      28,432.00$         39,256.00$        

TURBINE 2" 10.0 13,530.00$      35,540.00$              49,070.00$         13,530.00$      35,540.00$         49,070.00$        

COMPOUND 3" 16.0 21,648.00$      56,864.00$              78,512.00$         21,648.00$      56,864.00$         78,512.00$        

TURBINE 3" 24.0 32,472.00$      85,296.00$              117,768.00$       32,472.00$      85,296.00$         117,768.00$      

COMPOUND 4" 25.0 33,825.00$      88,850.00$              122,675.00$       33,825.00$      88,850.00$         122,675.00$      

TURBINE 4" 42.0 56,826.00$      149,268.00$           206,094.00$       56,826.00$      149,268.00$       206,094.00$      

COMPOUND 6" 50.0 67,650.00$      177,700.00$           245,350.00$       67,650.00$      177,700.00$       245,350.00$      

TURBINE 6" 92.0 124,476.00$    326,968.00$           451,444.00$       124,476.00$   326,968.00$       451,444.00$      

COMPOUND 8" 80.0 108,240.00$    284,320.00$           392,560.00$       108,240.00$   284,320.00$       392,560.00$      

TURBINE 8" 160.0 216,480.00$    568,640.00$           785,120.00$       216,480.00$   568,640.00$       785,120.00$      

COMPOUND 10" 115.0 155,595.00$    408,710.00$           564,305.00$       155,595.00$   408,710.00$       564,305.00$      

TURBINE 10" 250.0 338,250.00$    888,500.00$           1,226,750.00$    338,250.00$   888,500.00$       1,226,750.00$   

TURBINE 12" 330.0 446,490.00$    1,172,820.00$        1,619,310.00$    446,490.00$   1,172,820.00$    1,619,310.00$   

MAXIMUM IMPACT FEE EFFECTIVE IMPACT FEE



EXHIBIT D
 WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

INVENTORY







EXHIBIT E
 WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

INVENTORY





 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM: 8C  
 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-22 establishing a protocol for the Consent 
Agenda Protocol and establishing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
At the April 25, 2017 Council meeting, Council discussed the protocol for the Consent Agenda. 
Consensus was reached that the Mayor would ask Councilmembers as well as citizens if anyone 
had an item that they wished to pull from the Consent Agenda for individual consideration.  
Approval of the attached Resolution will formalize this protocol. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-22 establishing a protocol for the Consent 
Agenda Protocol and establishing an effective date. 
 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-22 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TX 
ESTABLISHING A PROTOCOL FOR THE CONSENT AGENDA AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas is committed to open and 
transparent government; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consent Agenda provides an efficient way to take action on matters 

considered routine in nature or items previously discussed with City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council is committed to ensuring that Bastrop citizens have an 

opportunity to request additional information and/or discussion on items posted under the Consent 
Agenda.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS 

 
Section 1:  The following language be added to the Consent Agenda portion of a posted 

City Council agenda: 
 
“The following may be acted upon in one motion.  A Councilmember or citizen may request 
items be removed from the Consent Agenda for individual consideration.” 

  
Section 2: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it is 

so resolved.  
 

READ and ADOPTED on the 9TH day of May 2017. 
 
 

CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Ken Kesselus, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
David Bragg, City Attorney 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM:  9A 
 
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-23 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
TX authorizing the purchase of 3.0610 acres of land described as Farm Lot 5 E M Street, Bastrop, 
Texas, in the amount of $119,000 for purposes of establishing a park; authorizing the Mayor to 
execute all closing documents; and establishing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
Trey Job, Managing Director of Public Works & Leisure Services 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Both the City Council and Parks Board have expressed the need to an additional park site in the 
northern portion of Bastrop.  Recently, the Bastrop County Historical Commission was notified 
that the Mina Ward School will be acknowledged with an Undertold Stories Historical Marker for 
Delgado, el al vs. Bastrop Independent School District, et al on the original school site, which is 
approximately one block from the location of this site.  Former Senator Barrientos, who attended 
first grade at the Mina Ward School, and Councilmember Kay Garcia McAnally were instrumental 
in securing this historical marker. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Additional information will be provided in Agenda Item 9B. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Parkland Dedication Fund will fund the purchase of this 3.0610 acre parcel. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-23 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
TX authorizing the purchase of 3.0610 acres of land described as Farm Lot 5 E M Street, Bastrop, 
Texas, in the amount of $119,000 for purposes of establishing a park; authorizing the Mayor to 
execute all closing documents; and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution 
• Exhibit A 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-23 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TX OF 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TX AUTHORIZING 
THE PURCHASE OF 3.0610 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED AS FARM 
LOT 5 E M STREET, BASTROP, TEXAS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $119,000 
FOR PURPOSES OF ESTABLISHING A PARK; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE ALL CLOSING DOCUMENTS; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council and Park Board of the City of Bastrop, Texas have expressed 

interest in the purchase of an additional park site in the northern portion of Bastrop; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is 3.0610 acres of land described as Farm Lot 5 E M Street, Bastrop, 

Texas available for purchase in the amount of $119,000. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BASTROP, TEXAS 
 
Section 1:  The City Council approves the purchase of 3.0610 acres of land described as 

Farm Lot 5 E M Street, Bastrop, TX in the amount of $119,000 for purposes of establishing a 
park. 

 
Section 2:  The City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute all closing documents. 
 
Section 3: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it is 

so resolved.  
 

READ and ADOPTED on the 9TH day of May 2017. 
 
 

CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Ken Kesselus, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
David Bragg, City Attorney 



Ex
hi
bi
t A

 ‐
3.
06

10
 A
cr
es
 d
es
cr
ib
ed

 a
s F

ar
m
 L
ot
 5
E 
M
 S
tr
ee

t, 
Ba

st
ro
p,
 T
X



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM:  9B 
 
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-24 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
TX designating the 3.0610 acre property described as Farm Lot 5 E M Street, Bastrop, Texas, 
purchased for purposes of establishing a park, to be named in honor of Minerva Delgado; and 
providing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
Trey Job, Managing Director of Public Works & Leisure Services 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Both the City Council and Parks Board have expressed the need to an additional park site in the 
northern portion of Bastrop.  Recently, the Bastrop County Historical Commission was notified 
that the Mina Ward School will be acknowledged with an Undertold Stories Historical Marker for 
Delgado, el al vs. Bastrop Independent School District, et al on the original school site, which is 
approximately one block from the location of this site.  Former Senator Barrientos, who attended 
first grade at the Mina Ward School, and Councilmember Kay Garcia McAnally were instrumental 
in securing this historical marker. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The language, which will be included on the Undertold Stories Historical Marker as shown below, 
tells the significance of the lawsuit, filed on behalf of Minerva Delgado and 19 other students.  
This case ultimately resulted in the integration of school systems for Mexican-American children 
across the United States.    
 

MINA WARD SCHOOL 
BASTROP WAS ESTABLISHED AS A MEXICAN MUNICIPALITY (LATER NAMED MINA) IN 1832. AS IN 
MANY TEXAS TOWNS, EARLY 20TH CENTURY GRADE SCHOOLS HERE WERE DIVIDED INTO 
THREE CAMPUSES, WITH SEPARATE FACILITIES FOR MEXICAN AMERICAN, AFRICAN AMERICAN 
AND ANGLO AMERICAN STUDENTS. BASTROP ESTABLISHED A SCHOOL FOR MEXICAN 
AMERICANS IN THE 1910s, AND IN 1933 BUILT THE MINA WARD SCHOOL ON LAND EAST OF MAIN 
STREET AND NORTH OF THE MKT RAILROAD TRACKS. THE ONE-STORY YELLOW FRAME 
SCHOOLHOUSE HAD CLASSROOM SPACE AND A STAGE FOR ONE TEACHER EDUCATING EIGHT 
GRADES OF STUDENTS FROM BASTROP AND THE SURROUNDING RURAL AREA. 
 
IN 1947, SAMUEL AND NANAMENSIA GARCÍA ASKED SCHOOL OFFICIALS TO LET THEIR 
GRANDDAUGHTER ATTEND THE ANGLO AMERICAN SCHOOL, BUT THE REQUEST WAS DENIED. 
ON NOV. 17, 1947, ON BEHALF OF TWENTY STUDENTS IN FOUR LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICTS, 
UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS PROFESSOR GEORGE I. SANCHEZ, ATTORNEY GUSTAVO (GUS) GARCIA 
OF SAN ANTONIO AND THE LEAGUE OF UNITED LATIN AMERICAN CITIZENS (LULAC) FILED A 
CLASS ACTION LAWSUIT TITLED MINERVA DELGADO, ET AL. vs. BASTROP INDEPENDENT 
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BASTROP COUNTY, ET AL. THE COMPLAINT ACCUSED THE SCHOOLS OF 



 

DEPRIVING CHILDREN OF EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES. AT THE TRIAL ON JUN. 15, 
1948, FEDERAL JUDGE BEN H. RICE ISSUED A SUMMARY JUDGMENT, RULING THAT THE 
SEGREGATION OF CHILDREN OF “MEXICAN OR OTHER LATIN AMERICAN DESCENT” WAS 
“ARBITRARY AND DISCRIMINATORY AND IN VIOLATION OF PLAINTIFF’S CONSTITUTIONAL 
RIGHTS AS GUARANTEED BY THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION OF THE 
UNITED STATES.” THE MINA WARD SCHOOL CLOSED, BUT STATEWIDE THE DECISION 
PRESERVED SEGREGATION OF AFRICAN AMERICAN STUDENTS AND ANY FIRST GRADERS WHO 
DID NOT EXHIBIT ENGLISH-LANGUAGE PROFICIENCY. THE SCHOOL AND THE DELGADO v. 
BASTROP CASE ARE REMEMBERED FOR THEIR SIGNIFICANT CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE CIVIL 
RIGHTS MOVEMENT AND FOR PROVIDING GREATER OPPORTUNITIES FOR GENERATIONS OF 
TEXANS. 

(2015) 
  

MARKER IS PROPERTY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
As noted above, naming this park after Ms. Delgado will honor the contributions made by the 
Mexican-American community to the Civil Rights movement, which began in the City of Bastrop, 
providing for greater opportunities for generations to come. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-24 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
TX designating the 3.0610 acre property described as Farm Lot 5 E M Street, Bastrop, Texas, 
purchased for purposes of establishing a park, to be named in honor of Minerva Delgado; and 
providing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
DESIGNATING THE 3.0610 ACRE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS FARM LOT 5 
E M STREET, BASTROP, TEXAS, PURCHASED FOR PURPOSES OF 
ESTABLISHING A PARK, TO BE NAMED IN HONOR OF MINERVA DELGADO; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
. WHEREAS, until the late 1940’s, the public education system in Texas for Mexican 
Americans offered segregated campuses with often minimal facilities and a curriculum frequently 
limited to vocational training; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the 1950 census showed that the median educational attainment for persons 
over twenty-five was 3.5 years for those with Spanish surnames and, by comparison, 10.3 years 
for other white Americans; about 27 percent of persons over twenty-five with Spanish surnames 
had received no schooling at all; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 1947 the Ninth Circuit Court in California found that separation “within one 
of the great races” without a specific state law requiring the separation was not permitted; 
therefore, segregation of Mexican-American children, who were considered Caucasian, was 
illegal; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Texas Attorney General, following this ruling and in response to an inquiry 
by Gustavo C. (Gus) Garcia, a Mexican-American attorney, agreed that segregation of Mexican-
American children in the public school system by national origin was unlawful and pedagogically 
justified only by scientific language tests applied to all students; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 1948, League of United Latin American Citizens (LULAC) joined 
by the American G.I. Forum of Texas, successfully challenged these inequities of the Texas public 
school system by filing suit against the Bastrop Independent School District and three (3) other 
districts representing Minerva Delgado and twenty other Mexican-American parents claiming 
segregation of Mexican children from other white races without specific state law and in violation 
of the attorney general’s opinion; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the suit accused these districts of depriving such children of equal facilities, 
services, and education instruction; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Judge Ben H. Rice of the United States District Court agreed and ordered the 
cessation of this separation by September 1949.  However, the court did allow separate classes 
on the same campus, in the first grade only, for language-deficient or non-English-speaking 
students as identified by scientific and standardized tests applied to all; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Delgado decision undermined the rigid segregation of Mexican 
Americans and began a ten-year struggle led by the American G.I. Forum and LULAC, which 
culminated in 1957 with the decision in Herminca Hernandez et al. v. Driscoll Consolidated ISD, 
which ended pedagogical and de jure segregation in the Texas public school system. 
 
  
  



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas does hereby authorize the 
3.0610 acres of land described as Farm Lot 5 E M Street, Bastrop, Texas, purchased for purposes 
of establishing a park, to be named in honor of Minerva Delgado once the purchase of the land 
has been executed by the City of Bastrop, TX. 
 

Section 2:  That said resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage, and 
is accordingly so resolved. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas on the 9th 
day of May, 2017. 
 
       CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Ken Kesselus, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
David Bragg, City Attorney 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 9C 
 
TITLE:  
Consider action to approve Resolution R-2017-25 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, TX 
to fund Organizations requesting Tier III funding from available reserves from Hotel Occupancy 
Tax Fund and establishing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
This is the second time the Council has considered Tier III funding since establishing the Tier 
priorities. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Resolution 2013-9 established a Tier priority for future grant funding out of the Hotel Occupancy 
Tax fund.  

 
“TIER THREE” – In approximately April of each year, the City Manager will report to the 
Council as to whether, during that annual HOT Funding cycle, HOT Funds remain 
available in the City’s HOT Fund reserves/account, after the Tier One and Tier Two 
priorities are approved and committed by the Council, then the following additional “Tier 
Three” HOT Fund expenditures may be considered for approval and funding by the 
Council: 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution R-2017-25 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, TX 
to fund Organizations requesting Tier III funding from available reserves from Hotel Occupancy 
Tax Fund and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution  
• Exhibit A 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-25 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS, REGARDING TIER III FUNDING FROM HOTEL OCCUPANCY 
RESERVES AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop, Texas, (“City”), is a Home Rule municipality 

incorporated and operating under the laws of the state of Texas, and accordingly has 
been granted full legal authority to enact rules and procedures related to its grant of Hotel 
Occupancy Tax funds to local recipients to enhance and encourage tourism in the City of 
Bastrop, as per the Texas Tax Code, Chapter 351; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has implemented a “Tiered Priority” process for evaluation, 

allocation, and use of the City’s Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund available reserves; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that there are available reserves in the Hotel 

Occupancy Fund in which to fund Tier III applicants. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the City Council hereby approves and adopts the Proposed Tier 

III Funding as reflected on the attached Exhibit A to this resolution. 
 
SECTION 2. Any prior resolution of the City Council in conflict with the provisions 

contained in this resolution are hereby repealed and revoked. 
 
SECTION 3. Should any part of this resolution be held to be invalid for any reason, 

the remainder shall not be affected thereby, and such remaining portions are hereby 
declared to be severable. 

 
SECTION 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage, and is duly resolved. 
  



2 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of May, 2017. 

 
CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 

        
_______________________________ 

       Ken W. Kesselus, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
David Bragg, City Attorney 



 FY 2015‐2016 FY 2016‐2017

Amount Amount REQUESTED PROPOSED Staff 
Organization Received Received FUNDING FUNDING Notes

Project: 25th Annual Patriotic Festival/Pet 'n' Pal 

Parade 12,000$               14,230$               17,935$                 17,935$               
Event has been expanded to two days improving 

the possibility for room nights.

Project: Bastrop Homecoming and Rodeo  20,788$               ‐$                          60,000$                 60,000$               
This is Homecoming's 70th year making it the 

longest running festival in Bastrop.

‐$                         

Project: Bastrop Juneteenth Celebration 5,000$                 5,000$                   5,000$                 

Bastrop Opera House
Project: Destination: Bastrop Opera House ‐ New 

Beginnings 58,555$               78,700$              

Project: Tier III Funding ‐$                          ‐$                          41,657$                 41,657$               
Received Tier III funding in FY2015 in the amount 

of $68,000 for roof replacement

Lost Pines Art League 25,000$              

Project 1: Lost Pines Regional Art Conference ‐$                          10,000$              

Project 2: Artful Afternoon ‐$                          10,000$              

Project 3: Salinas Student Art Event ‐$                          5,000$                

Project : 1st Friday Art Walk 3,300$                   3,300$                 

Project : Art Getaway 4,000$                   4,000$                 

Project : Specific Event Art Shows 4,200$                   4,200$                 

First Thursdays Film Festival

Project: Lost Pines Interntional Film Festival 120,000$               ‐$                          

This applicant is an individual ‐ Our policy states 

that to be eligible for funding "the applicant must 

be an organization or corporation governed by a 

board of directors or a business applying for a 

public project to support tourism efforts within 

the City." 
Neighbors Kitchen and Yard

Project: Bastrop Riverfront Music Series 36,000$                 18,000$               

Only one of the events requested for is within the 

dates of the current fiscal year. We 

communicated that the budget dates were from 

10/1/16‐9/30/17.

TOTAL 96,343$               241,028$          292,092$               154,092$             

Bastrop Homecoming, Inc.

Bastrop Juneteenth

CITY OF BASTROP
FY2017 TIER III FUNDING REQUESTS

TIER III FY 2016‐2017

Bastrop Chamber of Commerce



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 9D 
 
TITLE:  
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of  Ordinance 2017-14 of the 
City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas granting an amendment to the Pecan Park Residential 
Planned Development (Ordinance #2015-15) for approximately 204.576 acres within the Mozea 
Rousseau survey, abstract number 56 located at the terminus of Childers Drive within the city 
limits of Bastrop, Texas as part of the overall Pecan Park Conceptual Plan; setting out conditions; 
establishing an effective date and move to include on the May 23, 2017 agenda for a second 
reading. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Wesley Brandon, P.E., Director of Planning and Engineering  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
DM Pecan Park Associates LTD, has requested three modifications to the existing Pecan Park 
Residential PD (Planned Development) zoning district (Ordinance No. 2015-15) regarding 
setbacks, parking requirements and a minor amendment process for future modifications 
(Attachment 3). 
 

1. Reduce the rear setback for the Patio Homes—PD-PH (40 foot lots) and Single Family 
Select—PD-SFS (50 foot lots), from 15 feet to 10 feet. 

• This request would allow the developer to move the structure closer to the rear 
property line and provide more recreational space in front of the house.  
Additionally, comparison to other surrounding cities’ development codes show a 
10-foot rear setback to be a standard distance and has not created negative 
impacts. 
 

2. Remove the off-street guest parking requirement for the Patio Homes. 
• The original requirement for additional off-street guest parking was due to 

proposed tandem garage design that would leave each house with only one 
driveway space.  This amendment would remove this requirement when a 
traditional two-car garage is built and would include two driveway spaces.  
Furthermore, staff is recommending that driveway spacing be designed to allow 
street parking without blocking driveways. 
 

3. Include an administrative process to approve minor amendment to the PD in the future. 
• Allowing a minor amendment process would authorize the Planning Director to 

approve minor changes administratively. Currently, any change to a PD would 
require the developer or builder to go through the entire rezoning process.  This 
creates additional time requirements and may stifle creativity in development. If 



 

there is question if the amendment is minor, the City Manager will make the final 
determination. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed language modifications and changes to the Planned 
Development as presented in the P& Z report, to 1.) Reduce the rear setback for the PD-PH and 
PD-SFS from 15 feet to 10 feet; 2.)  Remove the guest parking requirement from the PD-PH uses; 
and 3.) Include a minor amendment process for future PD changes. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the request and held a public hearing at their 
March 30, 2017 meeting and voted 6 to 1 (with Richard Kindred in opposition) to recommend 
denial of the three requested amendments to the Pecan Park Residential Planned Development.  
 
Per the Local Government Code 211.006 (f) City Council will need to have a three-fourths vote of 
all members (6 out of 7) to overrule the recommendation from P&Z and approve the rezoning. In 
the case of the City of Bastrop, four (4) out of five (5) Councilmembers will need to vote in favor 
to overturn Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Planning & Zoning Commission Staff Report  
Attachment 1:  Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Pecan Park Residential PD Ord #2015-15.  
Attachment 3:  Applicant’s Request 
Attachment 4:  Housing Type Example 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2017-14 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS GRANTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PECAN 
PARK RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (ORD #2015-15) 
FOR APPROXIMATELY 204.576 ACRES WITHIN THE MOZEA 
ROUSSEAU SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 56 LOCATED AT THE 
TERMINUS OF CHILDERS DRIVE WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS AS PART OF THE OVERALL PECAN PARK 
CONCEPTUAL PLAN; SETTING OUT CONDITIONS; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, DM Pecan Park Associates, LTD, Duke McDowell (hereinafter 

referred to as “Applicant”) submitted a request for a zone change to amend the Pecan 
Park Residential Planned Development, Ordinance #2105-15, for approximately 
204.576 acres situated in the Mozea Rousseau Survey, Abstract 56, located at the 
terminus of Childers Drive within the City limits of Bastrop, Texas, hereinafter referred 
to as “the Property”; and 
 

WHEREAS, a copy of the Metes and Bounds Survey and location map is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Property); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned as Pecan Park Residential Planned 
Development (Ord #2105-15); and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, notice of 
the rezoning was given to all property owners located within two hundred (200) feet of 
the Property, and the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bastrop held a 
public hearing on the rezoning request on March 30, 2017; and 
 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended denial of the proposed amendments; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, notice of 
the rezoning request was given as required by the Ordinance, and the City Council of 
the City of Bastrop held a public hearing on the rezoning on May 9, 2017 to consider 
the Applicant’s request to amend the PD, Residential Planned Development; and 
 

WHEREAS, after consideration of public input received at the hearing, the 
information provided by the Applicant, and all other information presented, City 
Council finds by a three-fourths vote of all members that it is in the public interest to 
approve the amendment to the PD, Residential Planned Development. 



2 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1:    The Property, situated in Mozea Rousseau Survey, Abstract No. 
56 located at the terminus of Childers Drive within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas as 
more particularly shown and described on attachments Exhibit “A” and “A-1”, shall be 
and is hereby amended to:  

 
a.  Reduce the rear setback on the PD-SFS and PD-PH from 15 feet to 10 

feet. 
b.  Remove the guest parking requirement on PD-PH lots when a side-by-side 

two car garage is provided and driveways are spaced to allow at least one 
on street parking space for every two lots; 

c. Allow the following minor amendment process: 
The Planning Director shall have the authority to administratively 
approve a minor amendment to the standards and requirements 
of the Planned Development.  A minor amendment is one which: 
1) does not increase the overall density and/or traffic impacts of 
the development; or 2) has no significant adverse impact upon 
neighboring properties, the public or persons who will occupy or 
use the proposed development.  Changes in allowable uses will 
not be approved administratively.  If there is any question of 
whether the amendment is minor, the issue shall be referred to 
the City Manager for final determination.   

 
Section 2:     This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Texas. 
 

Section 3:     The Zoning Ordinance standards should be amended as follows: 
 
District Min. 

Lot 
Area 

Min. 
Dwelling 
Unit Size 

Min. 
Lot 

Width 

Min. 
Lot 

Depth 

Min. 
Front 
Yard 

Min. 
Interior 

Side 
Yard 

Min. Side 
when 

two-story 
& adj. SF 

Zone 

Min. Ext. 
Yard (See 
Sec.43.3) 

Min. 
Rear 
Yard 

Min. 
Rear 
when 
two-
story 
&Adj. 

SF 
Zone 

Max. 
Height 
of Build 

Max. 
Lot 

Covera
ge by 
Build 

PD-SFS  6,000 
sq. ft.  

1,200 sq. 
ft. 

50’ 120’ 20’-
25’ 

5’  15’ 15’ 

10’ 

 2.5 
stories 

35’ 

75% 

PD PH 
Not 

Allowed 
in 

Section 
6  

4,600 
sq. ft. 

1,000 sq. 
ft. 

40' 115' 20’ -
25' 

5’  10' 15’ 

10’' 

 2.5 
stories 

35’ 

75% 

 



3 
 

 
• PD-SFS – Single Family Select – Traditional lots, minimum lot size 50’ x 120’, 

home size 1,200 square feet; staggered 20’-25’ front building setbacks, Homes in 
these areas shall be at least ten feet (10’) apart, five feet (5’) from the property line.  
45% maximum acreage 

• PD-PH – Patio Home - minimum lot size 40’ x 115’, home size 1,000 square feet; 
staggered 20’-25’ front building setbacks, Homes in these areas shall be at least 
ten feet (10’) apart, five feet (5’) from the property line. 30% maximum acreage 
(Not allowed in Section 6) 
 

Standards for all homes in the residential areas will meet the criteria: 
 
• Guest Parking - Shared Guest Parking will be provided in the following Land Use 

District; PD-SFA, PD-PH, and PD-SFC.  Shared Guest Parking will not be 
required on PD-PH lots that require side-by-side two car garages and 
driveways are spaced to allow one 20 foot on-street parking area for every 
two lots. 
 
Section 4:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person 

or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other 
provisions, or application thereof, of this ordinance which can be given effect without 
the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are 
hereby declared to be severable. 
 

Section 5:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted 
below, or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in 
accordance with the City’s Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of 
Texas. 



4 
 

 
      READ and ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 9th day of May 2017. 
 
      READ and APPROVED on the Second Reading on the 23rd day of May 2017. 
 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________
     Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
David Bragg, City Attorney 
 



 
City of Bastrop  

                           

Agenda Information Sheet:     
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Date: March 30, 2017 
Public Hearing Description:  
Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a request for amendments to the Pecan Park 
Residential PD (Planned Development) Zoning Classification (Ordinance #2015-15) regarding 
setbacks, parking requirements and a minor PD amendment process. 
 
Item Summary: 
Owner:    DM Pecan Park Associates LTD  
Zoning:  PP-PD, Pecan Park Residential PD (Ord. #2015-15; Attachment 2) 
Land Use Plan:  Neighborhood Residential, Transitional Residential  
Legal Description:   204.576 acres of the Mozea Rousseau Survey, Abstract 56  
 
Request:  
DM Pecan Park Associates LTD, would like to propose some modifications/changes to the 
existing Pecan Park Residential PD (Planned Development) zoning district (Ordinance No. 2015-
15) regarding setbacks, parking requirements and a minor amendment process for future 
modifications (Attachment 3). 
 

1. Reduce the rear setback for the Patio Homes—PD-PH (40 foot lots) and Single Family 
Select—PD-SFS (50 foot lots), from 15 feet to 10 feet. 

2. Remove the off-street guest parking requirement for the Patio Homes. 
3. Include an administrative process to approve minor amendment to the PD in the future. 

 
Background: 
Representatives from DM Pecan Park Associates LTD, developers of Pecan Park, would like to 
receive recommendation for approval of the proposed modifications to both the Pecan Park 
Residential Planned Development (PD).   
 
The Pecan Park development is included in four different Planned Development zoning 
documents. 

 Ordinance #2013-05:   Pecan Park Residential Section 5 
 Ordinance #2015-08: Pecan Park Residential Section 4 
 Ordinance #2015-14: Pecan Park Commercial 
 Ordinance #2015-15:  Pecan Park Residential Sections 1-3, Sections 6-7 and related 

amenities. 
 

The requested amendments would apply only to Ord. #2015-15, for Sections 1, 2, 3, 6, and 7. 
 
The reduced rear setback is being requested due to the housing style they are considering for the 
Patio Homes and Single Family Select lots.  The house would be located closer to the rear lot 
line, with a detached garage in front to allow for an interior courtyard/patio (Attachment 4). 
  



The off-street guest parking requirement was included when the original housing style included a 
tandem garage, leaving only a single car-wide driveway.  With this request, the guest parking 
would not be required when a side-by-side two car garage is included.  Additionally, staff is 
requesting that the driveways must also be configured to leave 20 feet of on-street parking 
between each set of two lots. See the illustration below. 
 

Not To Scale 

 
 
The developer would like to include an allowance for a minor amendment process to allow for the 
Planning Director to administratively approve minor changes to standards in the Planned 
Development requirements.  Staff recommends the following language be included: 
 

The Planning Director shall have the authority to administratively approve a 
minor amendment to the standards and requirements of the Planned 
Development.  A minor amendment is one which: 1) does not increase the overall 
density and/or traffic impacts of the development; or 2) has no significant adverse 
impact upon neighboring properties, the public or persons who will occupy or use 
the proposed development.  Changes in allowable uses will not be approved 
administratively.  If there is any question of whether the amendment is minor, the 
issue shall be referred to the City Manager for final determination.   

 
Comments: Twenty-one (21) adjacent property owner notifications were mailed 3/09/2017. Two 
(2) public comments have been received in opposition to the requested Amendment at the time 
of doing this report. A notice ran in the Bastrop Advertiser on March 16, 2017. Responses from 
notifications are included in your packet and additional notices will be provided at the meeting.  
 
Staff Recommendations: Staff supports the proposed language modifications and changes to 
the Planned Development as presented in this report, to 1.) Reduce the rear setback for the PD-
PH and PD-SFS from 15 feet to 10 feet; 2.)  Remove the guest parking requirement from the PD-
PH uses; and 3.) Include a minor amendment process for future PD changes.  



Page 3 of 3 
 

City Contact:  
Wesley Brandon, P.E., Director of Planning and Engineering  
Planning and Development Department 
 
Attachments 
Attachment 1:  Location Map 
Attachment 2:  Pecan Park Residential PD Ord #2015-15.  
Attachment 3:  Applicant’s Request 
Attachment 4:  Housing Type Example 



SH
 71

LOVERS

PERKINS

HA
SL

ER

AG
NE

S

KE
AN

AH
AL

UL
UL

U

MA
YN

AR
D

CHILDERS

ESKEW

KA
LA

LE
A

HE
AD

WA
TE

RS

CL
EA

R 
WA

TE
R

PAHOA

SMITH

MA
RI

E

SH
 71

HASLER

PERKINS

SH
 71

SH
 71

ESKEW
Lo

ca
tio

n M
ap

Pe
ca

n P
ark

 R
es

ide
nti

al 
PD

³
Le

ge
nd Pe

ca
n P

ark
 R

es
ide

nti
al 

PD
 Bo

un
da

ry
Ar

ea
 O

rd.
 20

15
-15

Pa
rce

ls
Cit

y L
im

its
ET

J

Da
te:

 3/
23

/20
17

Th
e 

ac
cu

rac
y 

an
d 

pre
cis

ion
 o

f 
thi

s 
ca

rto
gra

ph
ic

da
ta 

is 
lim

ite
d 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 u
se

d 
for

 in
for

ma
tio

n
/pl

an
nin

g 
pu

rpo
se

s 
on

ly. 
 T

his
 d

ata
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

rep
lac

e 
su

rve
ys

 c
on

du
cte

d 
by

 r
eg

ist
ere

d 
Te

xa
s

lan
d 

su
rve

yo
rs 

no
r 

do
es

 it
 c

on
sti

tut
e 

an
 "

off
ici

al"
ve

rifi
ca

tio
n 

of 
zo

nin
g, 

lan
d 

us
e 

cla
ss

ific
ati

on
, 

or
 o

the
r 

cla
ss

ific
ati

on
 s

et 
for

th 
in 

loc
al,

 s
tat

e, 
or

fed
era

l r
eg

ula
tor

y 
pro

ce
ss

es
. T

he
 C

ity
 o

f B
as

tro
p,

no
r a

ny
 of

 its
 em

plo
ye

es
, d

o n
ot 

ma
ke

 an
y w

arr
an

ty
of 

me
rch

an
tab

ilit
y a

nd
 fit

ne
ss

 fo
r p

art
icu

lar
 pu

rpo
se

,
 or

 as
su

me
s a

ny
 le

ga
l li

ab
lity

 or
 re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y f
or 

the
 

ac
cu

rac
y, 

co
mp

let
en

es
s o

r u
se

ful
lne

ss
 o

f a
ny

 su
ch

inf
orm

ati
on

, n
or 

do
es

 it 
rep

res
en

t th
at 

its
 us

e 
wo

uld
no

t 
inf

rin
ge

 u
po

n 
pri

va
tel

y 
ow

ne
d 

rig
hts

. 
  

  
0

50
0

1,0
00

25
0

Fe
et





























March 6, 2017 

Mr. Wesley Brandon P.E. 
Director of Planning and Development 
Ms. Jennifer Bills, AICP, LEED AP 
Assistant Planning Director 
City of Bastrop Planning Department 
1311 Chestnut Street 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 

Re: River's Bend at Pecan Park 
Amendment Request to Ordinance No. Ord. - 2015 - 15 

Dear Mr. Brandon and Ms. Bills, 

DM Pecan Park Associates, Ltd. 
1310 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite B-200 

Austin, Texas 78734 
Office (512) 263-2214. 

River's Bend at Pecan Park continues its success thanks to many factors starting with the 
City Council, P&Z, your staff and the excellent group of Builders that we have been able to 
work with in the subdivision. As we have discussed throughout this process, our hope is to 
attract the best builders that we can and to offer several different home product styles and 
price ranges to accommodate the housing needs of the City. In our attempt to facilitate that 
desire, it has become apparent to us that a few modifications to our Pecan Park Residential 
Zoning Ordinance would help us expand into additional, very attractive home styles and 
subdivision designs which will help make this a subdivision recognized as a quality asset fo r 
the City and a quality standard for future developments. 

There are a few amendments that we would like to request to the current Ordinance. We 
feel they are reasonable and will help us provide more affordable housing, be a better fit for 
our new Bastrop residents and aid our Builders and improve the development of the 
project. 

Our request can be summarized in a few paragraphs. 

1. We request a modification to the rear setbacks for our 40' and SO' lots (Zoning 
Districts: Patio Home, "PD-PH" and Single Family Select, "PD-SFS"). Per the 
Ordinance, the rear setback is currently established at 15'. We request that the rear 
setback for both of those Districts be reduced to 10'. We have found that most 
surrounding central Texas cities have setbacks similar to our request. We have 
recently been approached by a successful quality builder who wants to build in our 
community. They have been very successful with a home design that has a center 
interior courtyard, which provides a nice alternative to the conventional style 
homes with the backyard area located behind the house. Although our lots are at a 
good 120' depth, considering the desired driveway depths, garage offsets, and desire 
for large well-landscaped interior courtyards, the current setback requirement 
makes their courtyard plan designs impossible to accomplish. Your approval of our 
request will help make their plans more workable, functional and aesthetically 
pleasing. 

jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



2. Per the current Ordinance, the Patio Home (PD-PH) areas are required to have 
shared guest parking. That additional parking would be located within the City's 
public street. We request that if our recorded Design Guidelines for a Patio Home 
Section requires, at minimum, that each home located within that Section must have 
an enclosed two-car garage, additional guest parking would not be required in that 
Section. We hope that you will agree that the 2-car enclosed garage requirement 
and the stipulated driveway depths required by the current Ordinance should 
provide adequate guest parking. 

3. Regarding future Amendments to this Ordinance, due to the fact that the property 
comprises a significant land area and its development will occur in phases over a 
number of years, we request that minor amendments may be made to the 
Ordinance, administratively approved by the Director of the City's Planning 
Department. If there is any question of whether the amendment is minor, the issue 
shall be referred to the City Manager for final determination. 

We sincerely appreciate your consideration for the above amendments to our current 
Zoning Ordinance. Please let us know if there is anything we can do to help expedite this 
request. It is of most importance that we receive a favorable and timely response. 

Sincerely 

Duke McDowell 
Owner /Manager 
D.M. Pecan Park Associates, LTD. 

Attachments: Ordinance 2015 -15 Area Boundary 
Sample Courtyard Home Site Plans and Floor Plans 
Aerial Depictions of Courtyard Homes 
Sample Front Elevations ( 40' Home Product) 
Sample Front Elevations (50' Home Product) 
Ordinance No. Ord. - 2015-15 



Attachment 4













 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 9, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 9E 
 
TITLE:  
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2017-16 of the 
City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas granting a Conditional Use Permit to allow a one-story 
church administration building, for 0.44 acres of Farm Lot 1, East of Main Street, located at 1208 
Water Street, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas; setting out conditions; establishing an 
effective date and move to include on the May 23, 2017 agenda for a second reading. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Wesley Brandon, P.E., Director of Planning and Engineering  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
The First United Methodist Church is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
construction of a one story church administration building on the subject property, located at 1208 
Water Street.  Under the current zoning classification N, Neighborhood, religious institution uses 
are only allowed with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 
 
The agent is applying for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the construction of a new 
church administration building on the existing vacant lot.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit to build an administrative building at 
1208 Water Street situated on an 0.44 acre tract, being a portion of Farm Lot 1, East of Main 
Street, an area currently zoned N, Neighborhood, within the city limits of Bastrop.  
 

1. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop regulations, and a Site 
Development Plan will be approved before development starts. 

2. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior to construction 
of the church administration building on the subject property. 

3. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one (1) year from the date the 
Conditional Use Permit is granted (second reading of the ordinance). 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission Action 
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing at the April 27, 2017 meeting and 
reviewed the requested CUP. 
 
Motion to approve a CUP to allow a one-story church administration building with the additional 
conditions: 

1. The east facing façade facing Water Street appears as residential as possible based 
on the Planning Directors opinion. 

2. The building only be used for church administrative uses only. 
3. There be at least four new parking spaces for the site be placed solely on this property.  

 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Motion made by Patrick Connell, second by Alyssa Halle-Schramm and approved 4-1 (Opposed: 
Cynthia Meyer, Recused: Lisa Patterson and Bryan Whitten, Absent: Richard Kindred and Tish 
Winston). 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Planning & Zoning Commission Staff Report  
Conceptual Site Plan  
Property owners’ petitions  
Letter from applicant   



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2017-16 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A 
ONE-STORY CHURCH ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, FOR 0.44 
ACRES OF FARM LOT 1, EAST OF MAIN STREET, LOCATED AT 1208 
WATER STREET, WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF BASTROP, TEXAS; 
SETTING OUT CONDITIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, First United Methodist Church (hereinafter referred to as 

“Applicant”) submitted a request for a for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow 
construction of a one-story church administration building for 0.44 within a portion of 
Farm Lot 1, East of Main Street within the City limits of Bastrop, Texas, hereinafter 
referred to as “the Property”; and 
 

WHEREAS, a location map is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Property); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned as N, Neighborhood; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, notice of 
the rezoning was given to all property owners located within two hundred (200) feet of 
the Property, and the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bastrop held a 
public hearing on the CUP request on April 27, 2017; and 
 

WHEREAS, after notice and hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended approval of the proposed request, subject to certain conditions set forth 
herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, notice of 
the rezoning request was given as required by the Ordinance, and the City Council of 
the City of Bastrop held a public hearing on the Conditional Use Permit on May 9, 2017 
to consider the Applicant’s request to construct a new church administration building; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, after consideration of public input received at the hearing, the 
information provided by the Applicant, and all other information presented, City Council 
finds by a majority vote of all members that it is in the public interest to approve the 
CUP. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1:    The Property, situated in for 0.44 within a portion of Farm Lot 1, 
East of Main Street located 1208 Water Street within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas as 



2 
 

more particularly shown and described on attachments Exhibit “A”, shall be and is 
hereby approved with the following conditions to:  

 
a. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop regulations, 

and a Site Development Plan will be approved before development starts. 
 

b. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired 
prior to construction of the church administration building on the subject 
property. 
 

c. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one (1) year from 
the date the Conditional Use Permit is granted (second reading of the 
ordinance). 
 

d. The east facing façade facing Water Street appears as residential as 
possible based on the Planning Directors opinion. 

 
e. The building only be used for church administrative uses only. 

 
f. There be at least four new parking spaces for the site be placed solely on 

this property.  
 

Section 2:     This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Texas. 
 

Section 3:   If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, 
or application thereof, of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
declared to be severable. 
 

Section 4:   This ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted 
below, or when all applicable publication requirements, if any, are satisfied in 
accordance with the City’s Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of the State of 
Texas. 
  



3 
 

      READ and ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 9th day of May 2017. 
 
      READ and APPROVED on the Second Reading on the 23rd day of May 2017. 
 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________
     Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
David Bragg, City Attorney 
 



MA
IN

PE
CA

N

FARM

CH
UR

CH

SPRING

WA
TE

R

BEECH

BUTTONWOOD

ALLEY

AL
LE

Y A

WA
TE

R ·

Legend
1208 Water Street

Property Location Map
for 

1208 Water Street

jbills
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



Page 1 of 4 

City of Bastrop 

Agenda Information Sheet: 

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Date: April 27, 2017 

Public Hearing Description: 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a church administration building to be constructed at 1208 Water 
Street, situated on 0.44 acre tract, being a portion of Farm Lot 1, East of Main Street, an area 
zoned N, Neighborhood, within the city limits of Bastrop. 

Item Summary: 
Owner:    First United Methodist Church 
Agent Gene Moulden 
Location:  1208 Water Street 
Utilities:  City water, sewer, and electric 
Zoning:  N, Neighborhood 
Land Use Plan: Downtown Bastrop  

Request: 
Gene Moulden, the agent for the First United Methodist Church is requesting a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the construction of a one story church administration building on the subject 
property, located at 1208 Water Street.  Under the current zoning classification N, Neighborhood, 
any religious institution uses are only allowed with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 

The agent is applying for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the construction of a new 
church administration building on the existing vacant lot.   

Aerial Map of the lot area 0.44 acres 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Description: 
The subject property includes the vacant parcel located at the corner of Beech and Water Street, 
and the applicant would construct a new church administration building on the site.   
 
The new church administration building meet all requirements as outlined in the Form Based 
Code, and Chapters 3 and 14 of the Code of Ordinances. 
 
Surrounding current Zoning Land Uses:  
 

Location Zoning Future Land Use Plan 

North (Residential) N, Neighborhood  Downtown Bastrop  

South (Religious 
Institution/Residential/ 
Commercial) 

N-Neighborhood,  
HMS-Historic Main Street, 
DMU-Downtown Mixed  
Use 
 

Downtown Bastrop, Public 
and Institutional  

East (Residential/Religious 
Institution) N, Neighborhood  Downtown Bastrop 
West  (Religious Institution/ 
Residential) N, Neighborhood Downtown Bastrop 

 
 

 
Zoning Map 

 
The church is proposing a 1,869 sq. ft. single story frame and brick veneer building facility that 
will house their administration staff of four to six people.  Currently, the church has an adequate 
amount of off-street parking. The parking lot and alleyway parking located on the property is 
adjacent to this parcel.  A Site Development Plan will need to be submitted and approved prior to 
building/construction. 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Proposed Site Plan 

 

 
Proposed Front Elevation 

 
Proposed Rear Elevation 

 
Basis of Support: 
Staff supports the Conditional Use Permit. The use will comply with all other area regulations, 
including setbacks and lot coverage and will have no detrimental impacts on adjacent property.   
 
Special Considerations: None.      
 
Financial Impact: None. 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

Comments: Ten (10) adjacent property owner notifications were mailed 3/15/2017. Three public 
comments have been received, with two being in opposition and one having no objection to the 
requested CUP. 
 
Staff Recommendations: 
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit to build the an administrative building 
at 1208 Water Street situated on an 0.44 acre tract, being a portion of Farm Lot 1, East of Main 
Street, an area currently zoned N, Neighborhood, within the city limits of Bastrop.  
 

1. Construction shall be in conformance with the City of Bastrop regulations, and a Site 
Development Plan will be approved before development starts. 

2. All necessary permits for the proposed development shall be acquired prior to construction 
of the church administration building on the subject property. 

3. A Building Permit shall be applied for and secured within one (1) year from the date the 
Conditional Use Permit is granted (second reading of the ordinance). 

 
City Contact:  
Wesley Brandon, P.E., Director of Planning and Engineering  
Planning and Development Department 
 
Attachments: 
Conceptual Site Plan, property owners’ petitions, letter from applicant   
 

 





MA
IN

PE
CA

N

FARM

CH
UR

CH

SPRING

WA
TE

R

BEECH

BUTTONWOOD

ALLEY

AL
LE

Y A

WA
TE

R ·

Legend
1208 Water Street

Property Location Map
for 

1208 Water Street





















 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM: 9G  
 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution R-2017-26 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, TX 
amending the Financial Management Policy for the City of Bastrop, Texas to include policy on 
Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund reserve balance; and establishing an effective date.  
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
   
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The current Financial Management Policy, adopted by Council on October 25, 2016, does not 
give guidance to financial management for the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund reserves.  Given the 
importance of tourism to our local economy, it is important to determine what is reasonable and 
appropriate to establish as a reserve for use in the event the economy has a down turn. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
At the April 25, 2017 Council Work Session, the proposed policy was discussed to establish a 
fund balance reserve for the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund given the importance of the organizations 
in the City of Bastrop, who count on funding support from the Hotel Occupancy Fund, and 
represent an important infrastructure to the success of our tourism economy.  If approved, the 
City’s financial policies will be amended as follows:  
 

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND – This fund has a long-term effect on the City’s 
economy and the reserve level needs to be sufficient to allow the fund to operate 
if a down turn in the economy occurred. Sufficient level of reserves should be a 
minimum of one year of expenditures to allow the City to ensure continuity of the 
organizations promoting tourism. Policy makers will need to determine priorities 
and funding levels should the economic downturn be expected to exceed the 
current adopted budget plus one-year reserves.  

FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution R-2017-26 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, TX 
amending the Financial Management Policy for the City of Bastrop, Texas to include policy on 
Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund reserve balance; and establishing an effective date.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Resolution Policy 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R- 2017-26 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS AMENDING THE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR THE 
CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop has adopted a Financial Management Policy to 

provide guidelines for the financial management staff; 
 

WHEREAS, the current Financial Management Policy, adopted by Council on 
October 25, 2016 does not give guidance to financial management for the Hotel 
Occupancy Tax Fund reserves; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City believes it is reasonable and appropriate to establish reserves 
in this fund for use in the event the economy has a down turn; and 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1:  The City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas approves and adopts 
the amendment to the Financial Management Policy, adding the fund balance reserve 
requirement of one year of expenditures. The amended Policy is attached as Exhibit A to 
this resolution. 
 

Section 2: Any prior resolution of the City Council in conflict with the provisions 
contained in this resolution are hereby repealed and revoked. 

 
Section 3: Should any part of this resolution be held to be invalid for any reason, 

the remainder shall not be affected thereby, and such remaining portions are hereby 
declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4: This resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, 

and is duly resolved. 
  



2 
 

 
PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop on 9th day of 

May, 2017. 
     

____________________________  
Ken Kesselus, Mayor    

 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
David Bragg, City Attorney 



 
Exhibit A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Bastrop 

 
 

Financial Management Policies 
 

 
                   
 
                              

Draft for approval 
 



 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

I. PURPOSE STATEMENT 
 
II. ACCOUNTING, AUDITING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING 

A. Accounting 
B. Funds 
C. External Auditing 
D. External Auditors Responsible to City Council                                                                                      
E. External Auditors Rotation 
F. External Financial Reporting 

 
III.       INTERNAL CONTROLS 

A. Written Procedures 
B. Internal Audit 
C. Department Managers Responsible 

 
IV. OPERATING BUDGET 

A. Preparation 
 B. Balanced Budgets 

C. Planning 
 D. Reporting 
 E. Control 
 F. Performance Measures and Productivity Indicators 

 
V.        CAPITAL BUDGET  
                   A. Preparation 

B. Appropriation 
C. Control 
D. Alternate Resources 
E. Debt Financing 
F. Reporting 

 
VI.       REVENUE MANANGEMENT  

A. Simplicity 
B. Certainty 
C. Equity 
D. Administration 
E. Revenue Adequacy 
F. Cost/Benefit of Abatement 
G. Diversification and Stability 
H. Non-Recurring Revenues 
I. Property Tax Revenues 
J. User-Based Fees 
K. General and Administrative Charges 



 3 

L. Utility Rates 
M. Interest Income 
N. Revenue Monitoring 
 

VII.     EXPENDITURE CONTROL 
A. Appropriations 
B. Vacancy Savings and Contingency Account 
C. Contingency Account Expenditures 
D. Central Control 
E. Purchasing Control 
F. Professional Services 
G. Prompt Payment 
 

VIII. ASSET MANAGEMENT 
                   A. Investments 

                         B. Cash Management 
                         C. Investment Performance 
                         D. Fixed Assets and Inventory 

 
IX.       FINANCIAL CONDITON AND RESERVES 

A. No Operating Deficits 
B. Operating Reserves 
C. Risk Management Program 
D. Loss Financing 
E. Enterprise Fund Self-Sufficiency 
E.F. Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund 
 

X. DEBT MANAGEMENT 
A.  Self-Supporting Debt 
B. Analysis of Financing Alternatives 
C. Voter Authorization 
 

XI. STAFFING AND TRAINING 
A. Adequate Staffing 
B. Training 
 

XII. GRANTS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
A. Grant Solicitation 
B. Responsibility 

 
XIII. ANNUAL REVIEW AND REPORTING 
  A. Annual Review 

B. Reporting 
 

 
 



 4 

I. PURPOSE STATEMENT 
 

The overriding goal of the Financial Management Policies is to enable the city to achieve a long-
term stable and positive financial condition while conducting its operations consistent with the 
Council-Manager form of government established in the City Charter.  The watchwords of the city’s 
financial management include integrity, prudent stewardship, planning, accountability, and full 
disclosure. 

 
The purpose of the Financial Management Policies is to provide guidelines for the financial 
management staff in planning and directing the city’s day-to-day financial affairs and in developing 
recommendations to the City Manager. 

 
The scope of the policies spans accounting, auditing, financial reporting, internal controls, operating 
and capital budgeting, revenue management, cash management, expenditure control and debt 
management. 

 
 
II. ACCOUNTING, AUDITING, AND FINANCIAL REPORTING 

 
A. ACCOUNTING – The City of Bastrop finances shall be accounted for in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles as established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. The fiscal year of the City shall begin on October first of each calendar 
year and shall end on September thirtieth of the following calendar year. This fiscal year 
shall also be established as the accounting and budget year. Governmental fund types use the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrue 
(i.e., when they are measurable and available.  Expenditures are recognized when the related 
funds liability is incurred, if measurable, except for principle and interest on general long-
term debt, which are recorded when due. 
 
Proprietary fund types are accounted for on a full accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 
are incurred 

 
B. FUNDS – Self-balancing groups of accounts are used to account for city financial transactions 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  Each fund is created for a 
specific purpose except for the General Fund, which is used to account for all transactions 
not accounted for in other funds. Governmental funds are used to account for the 
government’s general government activities and include the General, Special Revenue, Debt 
Service and Capital Project funds. 

 
C. EXTERNAL AUDITING – The city will be audited annually by outside independent 

auditors.  The auditors must be a CPA firm of national reputation, and must demonstrate that 
they have the breadth and depth of staff to conduct the city’s audit in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards, generally accepted government auditing standards, 
and contractual requirements.  The auditors’ report on the city’s financial statements 
including any federal grant single audits will be completed within 120 days of the city’s 



 5 

fiscal year end, and the auditors’ management letter will be presented to the city staff within 
150 days after the city’s fiscal year end.  An interim management letter will be issued prior to 
this date if any materially significant internal control weaknesses are discovered. The city 
staff and auditors will jointly review the management letter with the City Council within 60 
days of its receipt by the staff.   

 
D. EXTERNAL AUDITORS RESPONSIBLE TO CITY COUNCIL - The external auditors 

are accountable to the City Council and will have access to direct communication with the 
City Council if the city staff is unresponsive to auditor recommendations or if the auditors 
consider such communication necessary to fulfill their legal and professional responsibilities.   

 
E. EXTERNAL AUDITOR ROTATION – The city will not require external auditor rotation, 

but will circulate requests for proposal for audit services periodically, normally at five-year 
intervals or less. 

 
F. EXTERNAL FINANCIAL REPORTING – The city will prepare and publish a 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The CAFR will be prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and may be presented annually to 
the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for evaluation and possibly awarding 
of the Certification of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.  The CAFR will 
be published and presented to the City Council within 180 days after the end of the fiscal 
year.  City staffing and auditor availability limitations may preclude such timely reporting.  
In such case, the Chief Financial Officer will inform the City Manager and the City Manager 
will inform the City Council of the delay and the reasons therefore. 

 
 
III.  INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 

A. WRITTEN POLICIES & PROCEDURES – The Finance Department is responsible for 
developing city-wide written policies & procedures on accounting, cash handling, and other 
financial matters. The Policies will be reviewed by the City Manager and approved by the 
City Council. The procedures will only need approval by the City Manager. 

 
The Finance Department will assist department managers as needed in tailoring these written 
procedures to fit each department’s requirements. 

 
B. INTERNAL AUDIT – The Finance Department may conduct reviews of the departments to 

determine if the departments are following the written procedures as they apply to the 
departments.   
 
Finance will also review the written policies and procedures on accounting, cash handling 
and other financial matters.  Based on these reviews Finance will recommend internal control 
improvements as needed. 

 



 6 

C. DEPARTMENT MANAGERS RESPONSIBLE – Each department manager is responsible 
to the City Manager to ensure that good internal controls are followed throughout his or her 
department, that all guidelines on accounting and internal controls are implemented, and that 
all independent and internal control recommendations are addressed. 

 
 
IV. OPERATING BUDGET  
 

A. PREPARATION – The city’s “operating budget” is the city’s annual financial operating 
plan.  It consists of governmental and proprietary funds, including the general obligation debt 
service fund.  The budget is prepared by the City Manager with the assistance of the Chief 
Financial Officer and cooperation of all city departments. The City Manager transmits the 
document to the City Council.  The budget should be enacted by the City Council prior to the 
fiscal year beginning.  The operating budget may be submitted to the GFOA annually for 
evaluation and possible awarding of the Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation. 

 
B. BALANCED BUDGETS – An operating budget will be balanced, with current revenues, 

inclusive of beginning resources, greater than or equal to current operating 
expenditures/expenses. 

 
C. PLANNING – The budget process will begin with each Department Director submitting 

Expanded Level of Service (ELS) forms accompanied by a summary form ranking their 
requests by priority. The Chief Financial Officer will use the current budget as a base line 
and enter all ELS requests into the accounting system. Meetings are scheduled with the City 
Manager, Chief Financial Officer and Department Directors, to review their draft budgets. A 
summary of this draft budget is presented to City Council by the City Manager, at a Budget 
workshop There will be several more Council budget workshops as the City Manager and 
staff work through estimating revenue and making the necessary expense cuts to prepare a 
balanced budget for final approval. 

 
D. REPORTING – Periodic financial reports are available within INCODE to enable the 

department managers to manage their budgets and to enable the Finance Department to 
monitor and control the budget as approved by the City Council.  Summary monthly 
financial reports will be presented to the City Council within 45 days after the end of each 
month, if council meetings do not interfere with reporting requirement.  Such reports will 
include current year revenue and expenditure budgets and year-to-date actual figures for all 
major funds. 

 
E. CONTROL – Operating Expenditure Control is addressed in another section of the Policies. 

 
F. PERFORMANCE MEASURES – Where appropriate, performance measures and 

productivity indicators will be used as guidelines and reviewed for efficiency and 
effectiveness.  This information will be included in the annual budgeting process. 

 
 



 7 

V. CAPITAL BUDGET 
 

A. PREPARATION – The city’s capital budget will be included in the city’s operating budget. 
The capital budget will be prepared by the City Manager with assistance from the Finance 
Department and involvement of all required city departments. 

 
B. APPROPRIATION – An appropriation for a capital expenditure shall continue in force until 

the purpose for which it was made has been accomplished or abandoned 
 

C. CONTROL – All capital project expenditures must be appropriated in the capital budget.  
Finance must certify the availability of resources so an appropriation can be made before a 
capital project contract is presented by the City Manager to the City Council for approval. 

 
D. ALTERNATE RESOURCES – Where applicable, assessments, impact fees, or other user-

based fees should be used to fund capital projects which have a primary benefit to certain 
property owners. 

 
E. DEBT FINANCING – Recognizing that debt is usually a more expensive financing method, 

alternative financing sources will be explored before debt is issued.  When debt is issued, it 
will be used to acquire major assets with expected lives that equal or exceed the average life 
of the debt issue.  The exceptions to this requirement are the traditional costs of marketing 
and issuing the debt, capitalized labor for design and construction of capital projects, and 
small component parts which are attached to major equipment purchases. 

 
F. REPORTING – Financial reports will be available to enable the department managers to 

manage their capital budgets and to enable the finance department to monitor the capital 
budget as authorized by the City Manager. 

 
 
VI.     REVENUE MANAGEMENT 
 

A. SIMPLICITY – The city will strive to keep the revenue system simple which will result in a 
decrease of compliance costs for the taxpayer or service recipient and a corresponding 
decrease in avoidance to pay.   
 

B. CERTAINTY – An understanding of the revenue source increases the reliability of the 
revenue system.  The city will try to understand its revenue sources, and enact consistent 
collection policies so that assurances can be provided that the revenue base will materialize 
according to budgets and plans. 

 
C. EQUITY – The city will strive to maintain equity in the revenue system structure.  It is 

recognized that public policy decisions may lead to subsidies in certain circumstances, e.g., 
Over 65 property tax exemptions. 

 



 8 

D. ADMINISTRATION – The benefits of revenue will exceed the cost of producing the 
revenue.  The cost of collection will be reviewed annually for cost effectiveness as a part of 
the indirect cost, and cost of services analysis.   

 
E. REVENUE ADEQUACY – The city will require that there be a balance in the revenue 

system.  That is, the revenue base will have the characteristic of fairness and neutrality as it 
applies to cost of service, willingness to pay, and ability to pay. 

 
F. COST/BENEFIT OF ABATEMENT – The city will use due caution in the analysis of any 

tax, fee, or water and wastewater incentives that are used to encourage development.  A 
cost/benefit (fiscal impact) analysis will be performed as a part of such analysis and 
presented to the appropriate entity considering using such incentive. 

 
G. DIVERSIFICATION AND STABILITY – In order to protect the government from 

fluctuations in revenue source due to fluctuations in the economy, and variations in weather 
(in the case of water and wastewater), a diversified revenue system will be sought. 

 
H. NON-RECURRING REVENUES – One-time revenues will not be used for ongoing 

operations.  Non-recurring revenues will be used only for non-recurring expenditures.  Care 
will be taken not to use these revenues for budget balancing purposes. 

 
I. PROPERTY TAX REVENUES – Property shall be assessed at 100% of the fair market 

value as appraised by the Bastrop Central Appraisal District.  Reappraisal and reassessment 
shall be done regularly as required by State law.  A 97% collection rate will serve as a 
minimum goal for tax collection, with the delinquency rate of 4% or less. The 97% rate is 
calculated by dividing total current year tax collections for a fiscal year by the total tax levy 
for the fiscal year. 
 
All delinquent taxes will be aggressively pursued by being turned over to an attorney, and a 
penalty assessed to compensate the attorney as allowed by State law, and in accordance with 
the attorney’s contract.   

 
J. USER-BASED FEES – For services associated with a user fee or charge, the direct and 

indirect costs of that service will be offset by a fee where possible.  There will be an annual 
review of fees and charges to ensure that fees provide adequate coverage of costs and 
services.   

 
K.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES – A method will be maintained 

whereby the General Fund can impose a charge to the enterprise/ proprietary funds for 
general and administrative services (indirect costs) performed on the funds’ behalf.  The 
details will be documented and said information will be maintained in the Finance 
Department. 

 
L. UTILITY RATES – The city will strive to review utility rates annually and, if necessary, 

adopt new rates to generate revenues required to fully cover operating expenditures, meet the 
legal restrictions of all applicable bond covenants, and provide for an adequate level of 



 9 

working capital needs.  This policy does not prelude drawing down cash balances to finance 
current operations.  However, it is best that any extra cash balance be used instead to finance 
capital projects. 

 
M.INTEREST INCOME – Interest earned from investment of available monies that are pooled 

will be distributed to the funds monthly in accordance with the claim on cash balance of the 
fund from which monies were provided to be invested. 

 
N. REVENUE MONITORING – Revenues actually received will be regularly compared to 

budgeted revenues and variances will be investigated.  This process will be summarized in 
the appropriate budget report. 

 
 
VII.      EXPENDITURE CONTROL 
 

A. APPROPRIATIONS – The level of budgetary control is the department level budget in all 
Funds.  Transfers between expenditure accounts within a department may occur with the 
approval of the Chief Financial Officer. City Manager approval is required if transferring 
from a personnel or capital accounts within a department. When budget adjustments (i.e., 
amendments), are required between departments and/or funds, these must be approved by the 
City Council through an Ordinance   

 
B. VACANCY SAVINGS AND CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT – The General Fund 

Contingency Account will be budgeted at a minimal amount ($35,000).  The contingency 
account balance for expenditures may be increased quarterly by the amount of available 
vacancy savings.   

 
C. CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT EXPENDITURES – The City Council must approve all 

contingency account expenditures over $50,000.  The City Manager must approve all other 
contingency account expenditures.  

 
D. CENTRAL CONTROL – Significant vacancy (salary) and capital budgetary savings in any 

department will be centrally controlled by the City Manager. 
 

E. PURCHASING CONTROL– All purchases shall be made in accordance with the city’s 
Purchasing Policy. Authorization levels for appropriations previously approved by the City 
Council are as follows: below Directors $1,000 (Directors can request to have this amount 
raised by submitting a written request to the Finance Department), for Directors up to $9,999, 
for Chief Financial Officer up to $14,999, and with any purchases exceeding $15,000 to be 
approved by the City Manager. 

 
F. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – Professional services will generally be processed through a 

request for proposals process, except for smaller contracts.  The City Manager may execute 
any professional services contract less than $50,000 provided there is an appropriation for 
such contract.   

 



 10 

G. PROMPT PAYMENT – All invoices will be paid within 30 days of receipt in accordance 
with the prompt payment requirements of State law.  Procedures will be used to take 
advantage of all purchase discounts where considered cost effective.  However, payments 
will also be reasonably delayed in order to maximize the city’s investable cash, where such 
delay does not violate the agreed upon terms. 

 
 
VIII.  ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 

A. INVESTMENTS – The city’s investment practices will be conducted in accordance with the 
City Council approved Investment Policies. 

 
B. CASH MANAGEMENT – The timing and amount of cash needs and availability shall be 

systematically projected in order to maximize interest earnings from investments. 
 

C. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE – A quarterly report on investment performance will be 
provided by the Chief Financial Officer to the City Council. 

 
D. FIXED ASSETS AND INVENTORY – These assets will be reasonably safeguarded 

properly accounted for, and prudently insured. The City will perform an annual inventory of 
all assets with a value greater than $1,000.  

 
 
IX. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESERVES 
 

A. NO OPERATING DEFICITS – Current expenditures should be paid with current revenues.  
Deferrals, short-term loans, or one-time sources should be avoided as budget balancing 
technique. Reserves will be used only for emergencies on non-recurring expenditures, except 
when balances can be reduced because their levels exceed guideline minimums. 

 
B. OPERATING RESERVES – Failure to meet these standards will be disclosed to the City 

Council as soon as the situation is recognized and a plan to replenish the ending resources 
over a reasonable time frame shall be adopted. 

1. The General Fund ending fund balance will be maintained at an amount up to three 
months’ worth of estimated expenditures or at a level of 25% of budgeted operating 
expenditures. 

2. The Enterprise/ Proprietary Funds will be maintained at a minimum level of 35% of 
budgeted operating expenditures. 

3. Fund balances which exceed the minimum level established for each fund may be 
appropriated for non-recurring capital projects. 

 
C. RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM – The city will aggressively pursue every opportunity 

to provide for the public’s and city employees’ safety and to manage its risks. 
 



 11 

D. LOSS FINANCING – All reasonable options will be investigated to finance losses.  Such 
options may include risk transfer, insurance and risk retention.  Where risk is retained, 
reserves will be established based on a calculation of incurred but not reported claims, and 
actuarial determinations and such reserves will not be used for any purpose other than for 
financing losses. 

 
E. ENTEPRISE/ PROPPRIETARY FUND SELF-SUFFICIENCY – The city’s enterprise 

funds’ resources will be sufficient to fund operating and capital expenditures.  The enterprise 
funds will pay (where applicable) their fair share of general and administrative expenses, in-
lieu-of-property taxes and/or franchise fees.  If an enterprise fund is temporarily unable to 
pay all expenses, then the City Council may waive general and administrative expenses, in-
lieu-of-property taxes and/or franchise fees until the fund is able to pay them. 

  
E. F.  HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND – This fund has a long-term effect on the City’s 

economy and the reserve level needs to be sufficient to allow the fund to operate if a down 
turn in the economy occurred. Sufficient level of reserves should be a minimum of one year 
of expenditures to allow the City to ensure continuity of the organizations promoting tourism. 
Policy makers will need to determine priorities and funding levels should the economic 
downturn be expected to exceed the current adopted budget plus one-year reserves.  

 
 
X. DEBT MANAGEMENT 
 

A. SELF-SUPPORTING DEBT – When appropriate, self-supporting revenues will pay debt 
service in lieu of tax revenues. 

 
B. ANALYSIS OF FINANCING ALTERNATIVES – The city will explore all financing 

alternatives in addition to long-term debt including leasing, grants and other aid, developer 
contributions, impact fees, and use of reserves or current monies. 

 
C. VOTER AUTHORIZATION – The city shall obtain voter authorization before issuing 

General Obligation Bonds as required by law.  Voter authorization is not required for the 
issuance of Revenue Bonds and Certificates of Obligation.  However, the city may elect to 
obtain voter authorization for Revenue Bonds. 

 
D. BOND DEBT – The City of Bastrop will attempt to maintain base bond ratings of 

AA2(Moody’s Investors Service) and AA (Standard & Poor’s) on its general obligation debt. 
In an attempt to keep the debt service tax rate flat, retirement of debt principal will be 
structured to ensure constant annual debt payments when possible.  

 
E.  IRS COMPLIANCE – The City will have a written policy for monitoring compliance with    

IRS laws and regulations for tax exempt debt. 
 
 
 
 



 12 

 
 
 
 
XI. STAFFING AND TRAINING 
 

A. ADEQUATE STAFFING – Staffing levels will be adequate for the fiscal functions of the 
city to function effectively.  Overtime shall be used only to address temporary or seasonal 
demands that require excessive hours.  Workload scheduling alternatives will be explored 
before adding staff. 

 
B. TRAINING – The city will support the continuing education efforts of all financial staff 

including the investment in time and materials for maintaining a current perspective 
concerning financial issues.  Staff will be held accountable for communicating, teaching, and 
sharing with other staff members all information and training materials acquired from 
seminars, conferences, and related education efforts. 

 
 

XII. GRANTS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  
 

A. GRANT SOLICITATION – The City Manager will be informed about available grants by 
the departments. The City Council will have final approval over which grants are applied for. 
The grants should be cost beneficial and meet the city’s objectives. 

 
B. RESPONSIBILITY – Departments will oversee the day to day operations of grant programs, 

will monitor performance and compliance, and will also keep the Finance Department 
informed of significant grant-related plans and activities.  Finance Department staff members 
will serve as liaisons with grantor financial management personnel, will prepare invoices, 
and will keep the books of account for all grants.   

 
 

XIII. ANNUAL REVIEW AND REPORTING 
 

A. These Policies will be reviewed administratively by the City Manager at least annually, prior 
to preparation of the operating budget. 

B. The Chief Financial Officer will report annually to the City Manager on compliance with 
these policies. 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________           __________________________________ 
Tracy Waldron, CFO                           Marvin Townsend, Interim Lynda, 
Humble, City Manager 
 
 



 13 

History 
Previously Approved 9/23/14 
Approved 10/25/16 
  
 



 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017 AGENDA ITEM: 9H 
 

TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-21 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, TX 
authorizing reimbursement of legal fees to Council Member Gary Schiff incurred in his defense 
against Ethics Complaint No. 2016-2; providing a precedence for future reimbursements of legal 
fees related to Ethics Complaints of Council Members or Staff where there are no violation(s) 
found;  repealing Resolution R-2017- 13; and establishing an effective date. 

 

In addition, Section 3.07 of the City’s charter says “Council Members may receive reimbursement 
for necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties of office, according to policies 
to be determined by the Council.” 

 
Ethics violations alleged against Councilmember Schiff were dismissed by the Ethics Commission 
on March 23, 2017. Councilmember Schiff incurred legal expenses, which were paid personally, 
to defend himself against these charges. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
General Fund, Organization Department, Legal Fees 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-21 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, TX 
authorizing reimbursement of legal fees to Council Member Gary Schiff incurred in his defense 
against Ethics Complaint No. 2016-2; providing a precedence for future reimbursements of legal 
fees related to Ethics Complaints of Council Members or Staff where there are no violation(s) 
found; repealing Resolution R-2017- 13; and establishing an effective date. 
 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
David Bragg, City Attorney 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Article 1.15.130 (a) of the Code of Ethics states that the City Attorney shall serve as legal counsel 
and staff liaison to the Ethics Commission. Article 1.15.130 (b) states that the City Attorney shall 
serve as ethics advisory, only, to city employees and city officials, and shall not represent 
employees or city officials before the Ethics Commission and may not represent any 
person or party in any proceeding, as legal counsel, to the Ethics Commission. 
 
Therefore, when Council Member Kay McAnally filed an ethics complaint with the City of Bastrop 
Ethics Commission against Council Member Gary Schiff, Council Member Schiff hired personal 
legal counsel for representation during the proceedings of the Ethics Commission because the 
City Attorney is prohibited by ordinance from representing members of Council or Staff as noted 
above. 



 
 

1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-21 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TX AUTHORIZING REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES TO COUNCIL 
MEMBER GARY SCHIFF INCURRED IN HIS DEFENSE AGAINST 
ETHICS COMPLAINT NO. 2016-2; PROVIDING A PRECEDENCE FOR 
FUTURE REIMBURSEMENTS OF LEGAL FEES RELATED TO ETHICS 
COMPLAINTS OF COUNCIL MEMBERS OR STAFF WHERE THERE 
ARE NO VIOLATION(S) FOUND; REPEALING RESOLUTION R-2017-
13; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, under Article 1.15.130 (a) of the Code of Ethics states that the City 
Attorney shall serve as legal counsel and staff liaison to the Ethics Commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, when complaints related to the violations of this article are filed 
relating to the Mayor, City Councilmembers, City Manager, City Attorney, City 
Prosecutor, or Municipal Court Judge, independent legal counsel may be utilized to 
advise the Ethics Commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article 1.15.130 (b) states that the City Attorney shall serve as ethics 
advisory, only, to city employees and city officials, and shall not represent employees or 
city officials before the Ethics Commission and may not represent any person or party in 
any proceeding, as legal counsel, to the Ethics Commission. 
 

WHEREAS, Council Member Kay McAnally filed an ethics complaint with the City 
of Bastrop Ethics Commission against Council Member Gary Schiff, which complaint 
were assigned case numbers 2016-2 by the Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, Council Member Schiff hired personal legal counsel for 

representation during the proceedings of the Ethics Commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission ruled that the conduct alleged in Complaint No. 
2016-2 was not illegal conduct and that there was no violation of the Ethics Ordinance 
by Council Member Schiff and that the complaint was not brought in bad faith or for the 
purpose of harassment by Council Member McAnally; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a very significant public interest is served 

by this resolution because without it, individuals who may desire to run for Mayor or the 
City Council or accept an appointment to any of the City’s Boards and Commissions will 
be reluctant to consider such service because of the risk of having to pay for personal 
legal counsel to defend against ethics charges; and 
 



 
 

2 
 

WHEREAS, under Section 3.07 of the Bastrop City Charter, “[c]ouncil members 
may receive reimbursement for necessary expenses incurred in the performance of 
their duties of office;” and 
 

WHEREAS, the Attorney General of Texas has ruled repeatedly that the legal 
expenses of city officials and council members may be reimbursed under the common 
law when there is no violation found against the city official or council member; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that Council Member Schiff has incurred legal 
fees defending against the ethics complaints in the amount of $3,362.50 and that these 
fees are reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the legal expenses incurred by Council 
Member Gary Schiff were necessary expenses incurred in the performance of his duties 
of office; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to cause a reimbursement check to 
be issued, payable to Council Member Gary Schiff in the amount of $3,362.50 for his 
necessary legal fees in defending against Ethics Complaint No 2. 

 
Section 2. Resolution 2017-13 is repealed and replaced with this Resolution, 

which will serve as precedence for future reimbursements of legal fees. 
 

Section 3. The provisions of this Resolution are intended to be and are 
severable which means that if any part or provision is found to be illegal or improper, all 
other parts and provisions will remain in full force and effect. 
 

Section 4: This resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage, and is duly resolved. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of May, 2017. 
 

_______________________________ 
Kenneth Kesselus, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________________ 
David F. Bragg, City Attorney 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 9, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  9I 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-19 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
TX authorizing reimbursement of legal fees to Council Member Deborah Jones incurred in her 
defense against Ethics Complaint No. 2016-3; providing a precedence for future reimbursements 
of legal fees related to Ethics Complaints of Council Members or Staff where there are no 
violation(s) found; repealing Resolution R-2017-14; and establishing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
David Bragg, City Attorney 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Article 1.15.130 (a) of the Code of Ethics states that the City Attorney shall serve as legal counsel 
and staff liaison to the Ethics Commission.    Article 1.15.130 (b) states that the City Attorney shall 
serve as ethics advisory, only, to city employees and city officials, and shall not represent 
employees or city officials before the Ethics Commission and may not represent any 
person or party in any proceeding, as legal counsel, to the Ethics Commission. 
 
Therefore, when Council Member Kay McAnally filed an ethics complaint with the City of Bastrop 
Ethics Commission against Council Member Deborah Jones, Council Member Jones hired 
personal legal counsel for representation during the proceedings of the Ethics Commission 
because the City Attorney is prohibited by ordinance from representing members of Council or 
Staff as noted above. 
 
In addition, Section 3.07 of the City’s charter says “Council Members may receive reimbursement 
for necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties of office, according to policies 
to be determined by the Council.”  
 
Ethics violations alleged against Councilmember Jones were dismissed by the Ethics 
Commission on March 23, 2017.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
General Fund, Organization Department, Legal Fees 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-19 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
TX authorizing reimbursement of legal fees to Council Member Deborah Jones incurred in her 
defense against Ethics Complaint No. 2016-3; providing a precedence for future reimbursements 
of legal fees related to Ethics Complaints of Council Members or Staff where there are no 
violation(s) found; repealing Resolution R-2017-14; and establishing an effective date. 
 



 
 

1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-19  

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES 
TO COUNCIL MEMBER DEBORAH JONES INCURRED IN HER 
DEFENSE AGAINST ETHICS COMPLAINT NO. 2016-3; PROVIDING A 
PRECEDENCE FOR FUTURE REIMBURSEMENTS OF LEGAL FEES 
RELATED TO ETHICS COMPLAINTS OF COUNCIL MEMBERS OR 
STAFF WHERE THERE ARE NO VIOLATION(S) FOUND; REPEALING 
RESOLUTION R-2017-14; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, under Article 1.15.130 (a) of the Code of Ethics states that the City 
Attorney shall serve as legal counsel and staff liaison to the Ethics Commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, when complaints related to the violations of this article are filed 
relating to the Mayor, City Councilmembers, City Manager, City Attorney, City 
Prosecutor, or Municipal Court Judge, independent legal counsel may be utilized to 
advise the Ethics Commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, Article 1.15.130 (b) states that the City Attorney shall serve as ethics 
advisory, only, to city employees and city officials, and shall not represent employees or 
city officials before the Ethics Commission and may not represent any person or party in 
any proceeding, as legal counsel, to the Ethics Commission. 
 

WHEREAS, Council Member Kay McAnally filed an ethics complaint with the City 
of Bastrop Ethics Commission against Council Member Deborah Jones, which 
complaint was assigned case number 2016-3 by the Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, Council Member Deborah Jones hired personal legal counsel for 

representation during the proceedings of the Ethics Commission; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission ruled that the conduct alleged in Complaint No. 
2016-3 was not illegal conduct and that there was no violation of the Ethics Ordinance 
by Council Member Jones and that the complaint was not brought in bad faith or for the 
purpose of harassment by Council Member McAnally; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a very significant public interest is served 
by this resolution because without it, individuals who may desire to run for Mayor or the 
City Council or accept an appointment to any of the City’s Boards and Commissions will 
be reluctant to consider such service because of the risk of having to pay for personal 
legal counsel to defend against ethics charges; and 
 

WHEREAS, under Section 3.07 of the Bastrop City Charter, “[c]ouncil members 
may receive reimbursement for necessary expenses incurred in the performance of 
their duties of office;” and 



 
 

2 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Attorney General of Texas has ruled repeatedly that the legal 

expenses of city officials and council members may be reimbursed under the common 
law when there is no violation found against the city official or council member; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that Council Member Jones has incurred legal 
fees defending against the ethics complaint in the amount of $3,576.42 and that these 
fees are reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the legal expenses incurred by Council 
Member Deborah Jones were necessary expenses incurred in the performance of her 
duties of office; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to cause a reimbursement check to 
be issued, payable to Council Member Deborah Jones in the amount of $3,576.42 for 
her necessary legal fees in defending against Ethics Complaint No. 2016-3. 
 

Section 2. Resolution 2017-14 is repealed and replaced with this Resolution, 
which will serve as precedence for future reimbursements of legal fees. 
 

Section 3. The provisions of this Resolution are intended to be and are 
severable which means that if any part or provision is found to be illegal or improper, all 
other parts and provisions will remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 4: This resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage, and is duly resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of May, 2017. 

 
 

_______________________________ 
kenneth Kesselus, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David F. Bragg, Bastrop City Attorney 


	8B - Attachment - Impact Fee Ordinance.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2017-13
	NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS:

	8B - Attachment - Impact Fee Ordinance attachments.pdf
	EXHIBIT A Service Maps
	Exhibit B Land Use Assumptions
	Exhibit C Max & Eff Impact Fees
	Exhibit D Water Capital Improv Plan
	Exhibit E Wastewater Capital Improv Plan

	8C - Consent Agenda Protocol Resolution.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-22

	May 9 2017 Agenda Packet - Print File #1A.pdf
	9A - Attachment - Park Purchase Resolution.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-23


	May 9 2017 Agenda Packet - Print File #2.pdf
	9C - Attachment - HOT Tier III Funding Resolution.pdf
	A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS, REGARDING TIER III FUNDING FROM HOTEL OCCUPANCY RESERVES AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

	9E - CUP Staff Report First United Methodist Church Admin Building 2017.pdf
	Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit to build an administrative building at 1208 Water Street situated on an 0.44 acre tract, being a portion of Farm Lot 1, East of Main Street, an area currently zoned N, Neighborhood, within the ci...


	May 9 2017 Agenda Packet - Print File #3.pdf
	9G - Financial Management Policy Resolution.pdf
	A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS AMENDING THE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

	9G - Financial Management Policy.pdf
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	I. PURPOSE STATEMENT
	II. ACCOUNTING, AUDITING, AND FINANCIAL REPORTING
	A. ACCOUNTING – The City of Bastrop finances shall be accounted for in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The fiscal year of the City shall begin on October first of ...
	B. FUNDS – Self-balancing groups of accounts are used to account for city financial transactions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  Each fund is created for a specific purpose except for the General Fund, which is used to ac...
	C. EXTERNAL AUDITING – The city will be audited annually by outside independent auditors.  The auditors must be a CPA firm of national reputation, and must demonstrate that they have the breadth and depth of staff to conduct the city’s audit in accord...
	D. EXTERNAL AUDITORS RESPONSIBLE TO CITY COUNCIL - The external auditors are accountable to the City Council and will have access to direct communication with the City Council if the city staff is unresponsive to auditor recommendations or if the audi...
	E. EXTERNAL AUDITOR ROTATION – The city will not require external auditor rotation, but will circulate requests for proposal for audit services periodically, normally at five-year intervals or less.
	F. EXTERNAL FINANCIAL REPORTING – The city will prepare and publish a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The CAFR will be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and may be presented annually to the Government...

	III.  INTERNAL CONTROLS
	A. WRITTEN POLICIES & PROCEDURES – The Finance Department is responsible for developing city-wide written policies & procedures on accounting, cash handling, and other financial matters. The Policies will be reviewed by the City Manager and approved b...
	B. INTERNAL AUDIT – The Finance Department may conduct reviews of the departments to determine if the departments are following the written procedures as they apply to the departments.
	Finance will also review the written policies and procedures on accounting, cash handling and other financial matters.  Based on these reviews Finance will recommend internal control improvements as needed.
	C. DEPARTMENT MANAGERS RESPONSIBLE – Each department manager is responsible to the City Manager to ensure that good internal controls are followed throughout his or her department, that all guidelines on accounting and internal controls are implemente...

	IV. OPERATING BUDGET
	A. PREPARATION – The city’s “operating budget” is the city’s annual financial operating plan.  It consists of governmental and proprietary funds, including the general obligation debt service fund.  The budget is prepared by the City Manager with the ...
	B. BALANCED BUDGETS – An operating budget will be balanced, with current revenues, inclusive of beginning resources, greater than or equal to current operating expenditures/expenses.
	C. PLANNING – The budget process will begin with each Department Director submitting Expanded Level of Service (ELS) forms accompanied by a summary form ranking their requests by priority. The Chief Financial Officer will use the current budget as a b...
	D. REPORTING – Periodic financial reports are available within INCODE to enable the department managers to manage their budgets and to enable the Finance Department to monitor and control the budget as approved by the City Council.  Summary monthly fi...
	E. CONTROL – Operating Expenditure Control is addressed in another section of the Policies.
	F. PERFORMANCE MEASURES – Where appropriate, performance measures and productivity indicators will be used as guidelines and reviewed for efficiency and effectiveness.  This information will be included in the annual budgeting process.

	V. CAPITAL BUDGET
	A. PREPARATION – The city’s capital budget will be included in the city’s operating budget. The capital budget will be prepared by the City Manager with assistance from the Finance Department and involvement of all required city departments.
	B. APPROPRIATION – An appropriation for a capital expenditure shall continue in force until the purpose for which it was made has been accomplished or abandoned
	C. CONTROL – All capital project expenditures must be appropriated in the capital budget.  Finance must certify the availability of resources so an appropriation can be made before a capital project contract is presented by the City Manager to the Cit...
	D. ALTERNATE RESOURCES – Where applicable, assessments, impact fees, or other user-based fees should be used to fund capital projects which have a primary benefit to certain property owners.
	E. DEBT FINANCING – Recognizing that debt is usually a more expensive financing method, alternative financing sources will be explored before debt is issued.  When debt is issued, it will be used to acquire major assets with expected lives that equal ...
	F. REPORTING – Financial reports will be available to enable the department managers to manage their capital budgets and to enable the finance department to monitor the capital budget as authorized by the City Manager.

	VI.     REVENUE MANAGEMENT
	A. SIMPLICITY – The city will strive to keep the revenue system simple which will result in a decrease of compliance costs for the taxpayer or service recipient and a corresponding decrease in avoidance to pay.
	B. CERTAINTY – An understanding of the revenue source increases the reliability of the revenue system.  The city will try to understand its revenue sources, and enact consistent collection policies so that assurances can be provided that the revenue b...
	C. EQUITY – The city will strive to maintain equity in the revenue system structure.  It is recognized that public policy decisions may lead to subsidies in certain circumstances, e.g., Over 65 property tax exemptions.
	D. ADMINISTRATION – The benefits of revenue will exceed the cost of producing the revenue.  The cost of collection will be reviewed annually for cost effectiveness as a part of the indirect cost, and cost of services analysis.
	E. REVENUE ADEQUACY – The city will require that there be a balance in the revenue system.  That is, the revenue base will have the characteristic of fairness and neutrality as it applies to cost of service, willingness to pay, and ability to pay.
	F. COST/BENEFIT OF ABATEMENT – The city will use due caution in the analysis of any tax, fee, or water and wastewater incentives that are used to encourage development.  A cost/benefit (fiscal impact) analysis will be performed as a part of such analy...
	G. DIVERSIFICATION AND STABILITY – In order to protect the government from fluctuations in revenue source due to fluctuations in the economy, and variations in weather (in the case of water and wastewater), a diversified revenue system will be sought.
	H. NON-RECURRING REVENUES – One-time revenues will not be used for ongoing operations.  Non-recurring revenues will be used only for non-recurring expenditures.  Care will be taken not to use these revenues for budget balancing purposes.
	I. PROPERTY TAX REVENUES – Property shall be assessed at 100% of the fair market value as appraised by the Bastrop Central Appraisal District.  Reappraisal and reassessment shall be done regularly as required by State law.  A 97% collection rate will ...
	J. USER-BASED FEES – For services associated with a user fee or charge, the direct and indirect costs of that service will be offset by a fee where possible.  There will be an annual review of fees and charges to ensure that fees provide adequate cove...
	K.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES – A method will be maintained whereby the General Fund can impose a charge to the enterprise/ proprietary funds for general and administrative services (indirect costs) performed on the funds’ behalf.  The detail...
	L. UTILITY RATES – The city will strive to review utility rates annually and, if necessary, adopt new rates to generate revenues required to fully cover operating expenditures, meet the legal restrictions of all applicable bond covenants, and provide ...
	M. INTEREST INCOME – Interest earned from investment of available monies that are pooled will be distributed to the funds monthly in accordance with the claim on cash balance of the fund from which monies were provided to be invested.
	N. REVENUE MONITORING – Revenues actually received will be regularly compared to budgeted revenues and variances will be investigated.  This process will be summarized in the appropriate budget report.

	VII.      EXPENDITURE CONTROL
	A. APPROPRIATIONS – The level of budgetary control is the department level budget in all Funds.  Transfers between expenditure accounts within a department may occur with the approval of the Chief Financial Officer. City Manager approval is required i...
	B. VACANCY SAVINGS AND CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT – The General Fund Contingency Account will be budgeted at a minimal amount ($35,000).  The contingency account balance for expenditures may be increased quarterly by the amount of available vacancy savings.
	C. CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT EXPENDITURES – The City Council must approve all contingency account expenditures over $50,000.  The City Manager must approve all other contingency account expenditures.
	D. CENTRAL CONTROL – Significant vacancy (salary) and capital budgetary savings in any department will be centrally controlled by the City Manager.
	E. PURCHASING CONTROL– All purchases shall be made in accordance with the city’s Purchasing Policy. Authorization levels for appropriations previously approved by the City Council are as follows: below Directors $1,000 (Directors can request to have t...
	F. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – Professional services will generally be processed through a request for proposals process, except for smaller contracts.  The City Manager may execute any professional services contract less than $50,000 provided there is an...
	G. PROMPT PAYMENT – All invoices will be paid within 30 days of receipt in accordance with the prompt payment requirements of State law.  Procedures will be used to take advantage of all purchase discounts where considered cost effective.  However, pa...

	VIII.  ASSET MANAGEMENT
	A. INVESTMENTS – The city’s investment practices will be conducted in accordance with the City Council approved Investment Policies.
	B. CASH MANAGEMENT – The timing and amount of cash needs and availability shall be systematically projected in order to maximize interest earnings from investments.
	C. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE – A quarterly report on investment performance will be provided by the Chief Financial Officer to the City Council.
	D. FIXED ASSETS AND INVENTORY – These assets will be reasonably safeguarded properly accounted for, and prudently insured. The City will perform an annual inventory of all assets with a value greater than $1,000.

	IX. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESERVES
	A. NO OPERATING DEFICITS – Current expenditures should be paid with current revenues.  Deferrals, short-term loans, or one-time sources should be avoided as budget balancing technique. Reserves will be used only for emergencies on non-recurring expend...
	B. OPERATING RESERVES – Failure to meet these standards will be disclosed to the City Council as soon as the situation is recognized and a plan to replenish the ending resources over a reasonable time frame shall be adopted.
	1. The General Fund ending fund balance will be maintained at an amount up to three months’ worth of estimated expenditures or at a level of 25% of budgeted operating expenditures.
	2. The Enterprise/ Proprietary Funds will be maintained at a minimum level of 35% of budgeted operating expenditures.
	3. Fund balances which exceed the minimum level established for each fund may be appropriated for non-recurring capital projects.

	C. RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM – The city will aggressively pursue every opportunity to provide for the public’s and city employees’ safety and to manage its risks.
	D. LOSS FINANCING – All reasonable options will be investigated to finance losses.  Such options may include risk transfer, insurance and risk retention.  Where risk is retained, reserves will be established based on a calculation of incurred but not ...
	E. ENTEPRISE/ PROPPRIETARY FUND SELF-SUFFICIENCY – The city’s enterprise funds’ resources will be sufficient to fund operating and capital expenditures.  The enterprise funds will pay (where applicable) their fair share of general and administrative e...

	X. DEBT MANAGEMENT
	A. SELF-SUPPORTING DEBT – When appropriate, self-supporting revenues will pay debt service in lieu of tax revenues.
	B. ANALYSIS OF FINANCING ALTERNATIVES – The city will explore all financing alternatives in addition to long-term debt including leasing, grants and other aid, developer contributions, impact fees, and use of reserves or current monies.
	C. VOTER AUTHORIZATION – The city shall obtain voter authorization before issuing General Obligation Bonds as required by law.  Voter authorization is not required for the issuance of Revenue Bonds and Certificates of Obligation.  However, the city ma...
	D. BOND DEBT – The City of Bastrop will attempt to maintain base bond ratings of AA2(Moody’s Investors Service) and AA (Standard & Poor’s) on its general obligation debt. In an attempt to keep the debt service tax rate flat, retirement of debt princip...

	XI. STAFFING AND TRAINING
	A. ADEQUATE STAFFING – Staffing levels will be adequate for the fiscal functions of the city to function effectively.  Overtime shall be used only to address temporary or seasonal demands that require excessive hours.  Workload scheduling alternatives...
	B. TRAINING – The city will support the continuing education efforts of all financial staff including the investment in time and materials for maintaining a current perspective concerning financial issues.  Staff will be held accountable for communica...

	XII. GRANTS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
	A. GRANT SOLICITATION – The City Manager will be informed about available grants by the departments. The City Council will have final approval over which grants are applied for. The grants should be cost beneficial and meet the city’s objectives.
	B. RESPONSIBILITY – Departments will oversee the day to day operations of grant programs, will monitor performance and compliance, and will also keep the Finance Department informed of significant grant-related plans and activities.  Finance Departmen...

	XIII. ANNUAL REVIEW AND REPORTING
	A. These Policies will be reviewed administratively by the City Manager at least annually, prior to preparation of the operating budget.
	B. The Chief Financial Officer will report annually to the City Manager on compliance with these policies.


	9H - Revised Reimbursement for Gary Schiff Attorney Fees.pdf
	TITLE:
	FUNDING SOURCE:
	RECOMMENDATION:





